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develop the Picture Watsonia Vision (2014).

The consultation objectives link with the stages of engagement (described below) and are to:

Stage One

« |dentify stakeholder aspirations and priorities for improving Watsonia Neighbourhood Centre and to
translate these priorities into a set of clearly defined design principles.
Stage Two
s Use the design principles to create four concept designs for the Watsonia Town Square with surrounding
traffic treatments and civil infrastructure.
¢ Seek stakeholder and community feedback on the proposed concept designs and use this feedback to
generate a final design for the centre; and

Stage Three

¢ Confirm that the final design reflects the community feedback.

Watsonia Town Square | Consultation Update - March 2022
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membership is comprised of up to 15 members and includes representation from:

« Watsonia Traders Association (2)

s« \Watsonia Business Person (2)

¢ Watsonia RSL (1)

e Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service (1)
* Watsonia Neighbourhood House (1)

¢ Local Church (1)

e Local Interest Group (1)

* Local Property Owner (1)

¢ Local Resident(3)

s« Young Person (2)

The Group was formed through an expression of interest process in early February 2021. A multi-faceted
consultation process was designed and adapted as per the COVID-19 restriction requirements. The five sessions
included:

e Watsonia Community Reference Group Meeting (in-person): 25 May 2021
¢ Watsonia Community Reference Group Meeting (virtual): 22 June 2021

e Watsonia Reference Group Site Walk (in-person): 6 July 2021

* Watsonia Community Reference Group Meeting (virtual): 10 August 2021
¢ Watsonia Community Reference Group Meeting (virtual): 5 October 2021

In addition, members were provided with several project updates and opportunities to submit their direct
feedback to the project team.

Watsonia Town Square | Consultation Update - March 2022
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Stage Two Consultation

The community consultation period for the Watsonia Town Square Project was from 5 November - 5 December
2021 and included:

An online information session on Tuesday 16 November*.
Several drop-in consultation sessions on Tuesday 30 November.
The youth outreach service on Saturday 20 November and Friday 26 November; and

A presentation to both the North East Link Project (NELP) Business Liaison Group and NELP Community
Liaison Group.

* A second online information session was scheduled on Friday 19 November, however was cancelled due to low
registration numbers.

The consultation period was advertised extensively, including:

Mailbox drop: Approximately 2,000 postcards delivered to local households and businesses.
Banyule Banner and News from Our Neighbourhood features - Bakewell and Grimshaw ward editions.

In Centre Promotions: Bin wraps, A3 shopfront posters, postcards, 4 large corflute panels, 3 large paste
ups, footpath decals, library walkway feature and displays atthe North East Link Project Watsonia hub
and the Watsonia Neighbourhood House.

Social Media Advertising: Facebook and Linkedin posts.

Watsonia Town Square | Consultation Update - March 2022
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traffic and transport treatments and car parking configurations contained in option number four.

¢ The design will include the following features that are supported by the community consultation: a
playground area, open flexible space, gathering and seating spaces (including outside of the library),
biodiversity pods/ sensory areas, library story trail, amphitheatre, bouldering and skate features.

¢ The following features will be omitted: Table tennis, basketball court, multipurpose court and waterplay.

¢ With recognition to Council's integrated transport plan and the community’s stance on car parking
provision in Watsonia, the preferred design will include a modest loss of car parking.

e Council has proactively advocate to the State Government to allocate the additional funding ($4.98m) to
deliver monopoles as part of the project. This advocacy has now concluded to mitigate future project
delays.

e The preferred design option will be ready for Council's endorsement at a future ordinary meeting in
2022.

¢ Following Council's endorsement there will be a brief exhibition period, where the Watsonia communtiy
and interested stakeholders can view the final concept design(s). It is envisaged that the statutory
process to discontinue Ibbottson Street will commence at the same time as the exhibition period.

Watsonia Town Square | Consultation Update - March 2022
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We acknowledge First Nations peoples and their continuing connection
to land, waters and culture, because we strongly believe in reconciliation
and collaborative engagement for a better future.

We pay our respects to Elders past, present and emerging, whose knowledge,
traditions and stories quide custodianship on what will always be their
ancestral lands.

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 13



ltem: 5.1 Attachment 1: Attachment One: Watsonia Town Square Consultation Update -
March 2022

TS

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 14



ltem: 5.1 Attachment 1: Attachment One: Watsonia Town Square Consultation Update -
March 2022

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 15



ltem: 5.1 Attachment 1: Attachment One: Watsonia Town Square Consultation Update -
March 2022

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 16



ltem: 5.1 Attachment 1: Attachment One: Watsonia Town Square Consultation Update -
March 2022

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 17



ltem: 5.1 Attachment 1: Attachment One: Watsonia Town Square Consultation Update -
March 2022

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 18



ltem: 5.1 Attachment 1: Attachment One: Watsonia Town Square Consultation Update -
March 2022

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 19



ltem: 5.1 Attachment 1: Attachment One: Watsonia Town Square Consultation Update -
March 2022

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 20



ltem: 5.1 Attachment 1: Attachment One: Watsonia Town Square Consultation Update -
March 2022

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 21



ltem: 5.1 Attachment 1: Attachment One: Watsonia Town Square Consultation Update -
March 2022

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 22



ltem: 5.1 Attachment 1: Attachment One: Watsonia Town Square Consultation Update -
March 2022

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 23



ltem: 5.1 Attachment 1: Attachment One: Watsonia Town Square Consultation Update -
March 2022

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 24



ltem: 5.1 Attachment 1: Attachment One: Watsonia Town Square Consultation Update -
March 2022

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 25



ltem: 5.1 Attachment 1: Attachment One: Watsonia Town Square Consultation Update -
March 2022

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 26



ltem: 5.1 Attachment 1: Attachment One: Watsonia Town Square Consultation Update -
March 2022

Concept design options
November 2021

Concept Design Number One

Watsonia Town Square | Consultation Update - March 2022
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Concept Design Number Two

Watsonia Town Square | Consultation Update - March 2022
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Concept Design Number Three

Watsonia Town Square | Consultation Update - March 2022
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Concept Design Number Four

Watsonia Town Square | Consultation Update - March 2022
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North East Link — Urban Design and Landscape Plan — Banyule Council Response

TUNNEL

1. The present design of the northern tunnel portal in the central package will set the design
for the northern package and limit other possible design solutions in this package. The
UDLP for the primary works should be extended north to a minimum of Grimshaw Street
to ensure an integrated design or must not limit the opportunity to continue the
boulevard design solution for the northern package.

An extension to the tunnel north of Watsonia Station should be provided to avoid an open
trench in Watsonia. This is a better outcome for residential areas in this vicinity, rather
than green land bridges that concentrate all the landscaping in two sections of land away
from houses and people.

An extension of the proposed Greensborough Road boulevard treatment up to Elder
Street is essential.

LANDSCAPING AND OFFSET PLANTING

2. Expedite plant selection, seed collection, propagation and planting, and consider using
advanced tree stock.

3. Designs should reflect diversity in strata levels, and include dense, prickly shrubs to
minimise pest bird species and encourage biodiversity.

4. inciusion of more poiiinator spaces wouid be preferabie to see aiso within this space with
diversity in local indigenous grasses (e.g. Microlaena stipoides - aka Weeping Grass)),
sedgels lilies and herbaceous flora.

5. Ensure suitable time allowances for the variety of species establishment, as well as
consider long term maintenance requirements.

BORLASE RESERVE / BANYULE CREEK / OPEN SPACE

6. Itis important to take advantage of this opportunity to construct a grade separated bridge
across the Greensborough Road to Borlase Reserve, providing a far better connection to
the western side of the road.

7. Itis essential to communicate that this is not entirely unencumbered open space, as it has
a primary function of drainage [ water treatment and includes areas of reinstated
vegetation.

8. Current plans display an engineered trapezoidal channel, not in line with the intended
natural meandering character and reinstatement of a natural creek.

The project should maximise the creek at surface level and minimise piped sections,
where possible.

9. Improve wildlife corridor treatments, including consideration of constructing habitat
infrastructure underneath and over Lower Plenty Road.

10. References to "nature play" do not align with artists impressions depicting a playground.
Further explanation on a half-basketball court as the choice of "active" space usage within
the reserve.

11. How have youth spaces been included into the plan? There doesn’t appear to be any
mention of it. For example, dirt jumps and mountain bike tracks (and not pump tracks or
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hard/concrete tracks). This would be a perfect area to include these given the proximity to
Watsonia and the train station there.

SHARED USER PATHS / FOOTPATHS

12. Improve safety of the SUP bridge south of Lower Plenty Road by bringing it to ground
further from pedestrian crossing, constructing safety barriers with graffiti removal in
mind, and planting appropriately sized trees in bridge circle so as not to obstruct line of
sight.

Ensure that the design minimises overlooking into adjacent residential properties on the
south side of Lower Plenty Road.

Ensure SUP on the east side of Greenshorough has a more direct connection to the north
western corner of Lower Plenty Road to provide better access to local facilities along
Lower Plenty Road such as the school.

13. Review options for the SUP to be continuous near the Lower Plenty portal and not have to
cross over 4 sections of road.

14. Ensure safety in and around Borlase Reserve / Greensborough Road by incorporating SUP
lighting, and safety barriers around retarding basin.

15. Improve SUP and footpath network by including multiple crossings across Banyule Creek
(inside Borlase Reserve), ensuring effective connection across Greenshorough Road at
Erskine Road, extending eastward along Lower Plenty Road, and continuing in separator
on western side of Greensbhorough Road.

16. Include a footpath through Wittman Reserve to Westdale Court to improve pedestrian

aCCess.,

ROADS

17. Provide details on traffic modelling and resident consultation for Borlase Street, Coleen
Street, Drysdale Street, Debra Court, Kay Court, Mavis Court, Moya Court, Anne Court,
Fahey Crescent and Amanda Court given the UDLP is proposing the truncation of Colleen
Street and Borlase Street.

Provide details on traffic modelling and treatments for Crew Street / Lower Plenty Road
intersection, given Borlase Street and Coleen Street truncation.

18. Important improvements to be made on Greenshorough Road and associated service
roads, including better access out of services roads and improved vehicle movement
across Greensborough Road.

The service road on the west side of Greensborough Road must be connected from
Yallambie Road to Cooley Avenue (one-way traffic southbound). Otherwise the turning
area needs to be made larger to enable garbage truck to turn around.

19. The level of Drysdale Street / Borlase Street / Drysdale Street should be raised to provide
flatter road levels and enable a flatter and shorter SUP along the pipe track.

20. Address the safety issues with adverse cross fall at the Lower Plenty Road /
Greensborough Highway intersection.
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FLOOD WALLS

21. Ensure uniformity of design along Greensborough Road, improve pedestrian access
through wall, and review suitability of treatment in western separator south of Erskine
Road - residents may not understand it as a flood wall.

BUS STOPS

22. Review and rationalize locations of bus stops on both sides of Greensborough Road near
proposed crossings. It is recommended to research new stop locations based on the
altered infrastructure in this area. Please confirm that route 513 is a permanent route
taken into account for this design.

PUBLIC ARTWORK

23. Look for opportunities to provide public art.

WINSOR RESERVE

24, There is no detail on how Winsor Reserve is to be improved / reinstated after it is
returned to the public after it use to facilitate construction for up to seven years.
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North East Link — Urban Design and Landscape Plan — Operational Response prior to public
exhibition.

LANDSCAPE AND ENHANCED BIODIVERSITY

1. All trees species used in replanting should be in line with both Ecological Vegetation
Classes present, within the Gippsland Bioregion. Specifically, EVC 55 Plains Grassy
Woodland and EVC 68 Creekline Grassy Woodland.

2. Tree species included in planting, it is strongly encouraged to aim for diversity of species
and avoid monocultures. Noting that the EVC's present have 8 different indigenous
Eucalypt species and 14 different Tall Shrub species suitable.

3. There is an opportunity to also include species enrichment through the inclusion of more
Eucalyptus X studleyensis into tree selection. Noting this species has been impacted by
the project and its conservation status in Victoria is endangered.

4. Landscape planting species used should reflect local EVC's 55, Plains Grassy Woodland
and EVC 68, Creek line Grassy Woodland. Noted that it was great to hear local indigenous
species are being preference in the design. BCC has extensive species lists for all local
indigenous species in these vegetation communities and can share if required.

It would be useful to have commitment for the plant palette sooner rather than later as
seed collection, propagation and forward planning to ongrow these trees to a suitable size
will take time. Will there be advanced tree stock used as the larger the better to have that
immediate impact when compiete. Noting that it typicaily takes 20 years for a tree to
grow to a size that starts to provide shade and other ecosystem service benefit.

5. Currentdrawings and artistic interpretations show a lack of different strata levels (slides
16 and 17). The two local vegetation communities note a cover of up to 20% tall shrubs. It
would be good to see more diversity in strata levels throughout. Noting in the
presentation to Council that this was already being considered but would be good to see
reflected in future designs.

Strata levels and diversity in understorey is key.

Noting that much of this newly created area would be classified as encumbered open
space. The figures and noted listed on the Interactive map (pubic website) indicate 'S
MCGs' indicate large new open spaces. | would like to understand the actual expected
figures and have a breakdown of what is classified as encumbered versus unencumbered
open space. Noting that the reinstated vegetated area with daylighted creek is fantastic
but communication needs to be clear that this is not technically "unencumbered public
open space".

6. Currentdrawings and artistic interpretations also show a lot of trees and open grass
areas. Noting there is a strong correlation in urban environments, between areas that
have a majority landscape of trees and open grass with increase in pest bird species
(Common Mynas). It is strongly encouraged that thought is put into incorporating dense,
prickly shrub plantings to minimise the impact of pest bird species and encourage greater
biodiversity values.

See note above. Strata levels combined with medium shrubby prickly plants is critical to
the value of a biodiverse rick planting pallette.
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As above - Noting that much of this newly created area would be classified as
encumbered open space. The figures and noted listed on the Interactive map (pubic
website) indicate 'S MCGs' indicate large new open spaces. | would like to understand the
actual expected figures and have a breakdown of what is classified as encumbered
verusus unencumbered open space. Noting that the reinstated vegetatd area with
daylighted creek is fantastic but communication needs to be clear that this is not
technically "unencumbered public open space".

7. Inclusion of more pollinator spaces would be preferable to see also within this space with
diversity in local indigenous grasses, sedgels lilies and herbaceous flora.

We request some ecological rigour to the recommended plant species to promote
pollinator spaces/plantings when presented to Council. There are useful current research
proejcts and outcomes which support this approach which should be drawn apon so that
the full species list is backed up by science and an informed selection.

8. Open grassed areas, it would be good to see an indigenous species being considered such
as Microlaena stipoides (Weeping Grass) as this is a well performed lawn grass and adds
to the overall biodiversity.

This is supported and would complement the whole site. If the open grass area of
Microlaena stipoides is to be included, there needs to be timeframes allowed to
undertaken supply of seed and establishment as this takes much longer than a standard
lawn. Longer term maintenance requirements would also need to be included.

9. Creation of habitatlink - overall support in principle for creating habitat links, open
waterway corridors (questions here about whether it is a space for public access or more
in line with current scenario (i.e. no public access).

Borlase Reserve is already highlighted as a habitat link in the Banyule Planning Scheme
under Clause 21.05 (Natural Areas Framework Map) - see Attachment 1 - Figure 3 and
retention of habitat has been a key advocacy position for Council to this point. Future
outcomes should preserve and enhance habitat corridors.

The creation of a habitat and improving the creek corridor as a wildlife corridor is strongly
supported but this outcome can still be achieved if part of the land is developed for
passive recreation.

In previous comments provided with respect to Borlase Reserve Open Space has
suggested that Banyule Creek (currently an unattractive, engineered, trapezoidal channel)
be modified to ensure that the alignment is meandering with the embankments varying in
grade. Pools and riffles to be designed and indigenous plantings and stone to be utilised
to create a natural looking creek/tributary.

Passive recreation infrastructure to include seats along the paths, decks and boardwalks
etc. The intent would be to enable people to interact with the wetland proper and not
simply be restricted to the periphery. Other embellishments (i.e. play facilities, toilets
etc.) would require Council direction.

There may be future considerations here in terms of future ownership/ management of
the waterway corridor - with Melbourne Water potentially having responsibility. How this
works in practice with MW and Council having shared interests at a point where NEL no
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longer holds management responsibility will be an important conversation and
consideration.

It is unclear how much existing vegetation and habitat will be retained south of the
ventilation stack and north of the southern interchange ramps. As much of this existing
vegetation and habitat is to be retained and supplemented with additional indigenous
planting.

The current plans as displayed on the public website is still displaying the unattractive,
engineered trapezoidal channel which is not aligned with the intended natural
meandering character. Further work is required to modify the designs to align to intended
habitat link.

10. Primary focus - passive open space and habitat corridor:

The Banyule Community has previously provided strong feedback that the loss of
established trees and habitat along Greensborough Road was not a desirable outcome.
This was coupled, partly, with a request for a longer tunnel to avoid such impacts (both
construction) and future shape on the landscape. The construction method, even with an
extended tunnel, however is still going to result significant loss of trees and habitat. As a
minimum, itis considered that a major focus on habitat creation and net gain ought to be
a priority alongside the active transport for this corridor.

It should also be noted that the existing area north of Drysdale St within the NEL corridor
was previously used by VicRoads as a vegetation offset location. Accordingly, an offset for
the abovementioned habitat and vegetation loss must also include this previously
determined offset as well.

The future environment for much of this space as a place for passive recreation will need
careful consideration, particularly given the likely significant traffic volumes along
Greenshorough Road accessing the portal. Whether itis a place where features such as
play parks are desirable, and all on the periphery of residential areas, restricted
catchments remain doubtful. It seems challenging to believe that spaces for family
activity will achieve any sense of amenity in this location. Might more community
benefits be derived by NE link augmenting other nearby open space amenities as an
alternative benefit to the affected communities?

In support of this, we draw reference to the Banyule Open Space Plan (2016-2031), page
19 (Barriers to Access) - and note that Greensborough Road and Lower Plenty Roads are
already highlighted as perceived barriers given a range of factors (traffic volume), lanes of
traffic etc. It highlights that the location of the space and the range of possible future
uses/ user groups for any space(s) needs to be carefully considered alongside these
challenges.

Suggest that high order passive recreation infrastructure will need to be determined post
community consultation and at the direction of Council. As discussed, there are
opportunities to consider the provision of youth facilities (i.e. dirt jumps/pump track)
pending further investigation and community feedback. We would also need to ensure
these type of facilities are viable with due regard to adjacent land use (i.e. arterial road
and residential etc.).

As noted, any previous engagement with the community did not have the benefit of the
current design detail and had a very different scenario of a cut channel, land bridges etc.
The community hasn't previously been faced with the prospect of a more activated space
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and how desirable it might be. This is without prejudice to officer comments about
whether this is the right location from a destination planning perspective. We are not
informed at this stage with the views of our community and its aspirations.

11. Consider providing habitat infrastructure beneath Lower Plenty Road to support habitat
connectivity between Simpsons Barracks and the Banyule Flats/Yarra floodplain.

OPEN SPACE AND PARKLANDS

12. Open Space Network - support for overall increase in provision of open space and public
access, active trail and walking trails/ footpaths.

Attachment 1 — Figure 1 identifies a 400 metre walking catchment from the centre of
Coleen Street Reserve. Even with the loss of Borlase Reserve, residents east of
Greensborough Road and north of Lower Plenty Road will still be within a 400 metre (5
minute) walk to open space.

The Public Open Space Plan Technical Report does identify a gap in open space provision
on the west side of Greensborough Road (pink shading below). If pedestrian access could
be provided across Greensborough Road (grade separated preferred but noting the
limitations on the west side of the road), the gap in open space provision could in part be
mitigated.

The development of this land for passive recreation is supported. Maore specifically it is
suggested that the land function as encumbered open space (primary land use is
drainage/water treatment, but secondary use is passive recreation).

Key recommendations in the Public Open Space Plan Technical Report is to investigate
strategies for increasing the availability of local public open space for residents in areas
that aren’t within Council’s prescribed 400 metre walking distance of a park, or where
there is currently under supply.

A grade separated crossing (bridge) is preferred and would provide better connections to
the west side of Greensborough Road where there is a known gap in open space
provision. Banyule Public Open Space Plan see roads as a barrier. We draw on again -
reference to the Banyule Open Space Plan (2016-2031), page 19 (Barriers to Access) - and
note that Greensbhorough Road and Lower Plenty Roads are already highlighted as
perceived barriers given a range of factors (traffic volume), lanes of trafficetc. It
highlights that the location of the space and the range of possible future uses/ user
groups for any space(s) needs to be carefully considered alongside these challenges.

Key recommendations in the Public Open Space Plan Technical Report is to investigate
strategies for increasing the availability of local public open space for residents in areas
that aren’t within Council's prescribed 400 metre walking distance of a park, or where
there is currently under supply. This would be the time to allow for a bridge, so the
opportunity is not missed.

The development of this land for passive recreation is supported. However, it is
suggested that the land function as encumbered open space (primary land use is
drainage/water treatment, but secondary use is passive recreation). | note that this is not
the messaging to the public where the Interactive map (pubic website) indicate '5 MCGs'
indicate large new open spaces. | would like to understand the actual expected figures
and breakdown of what is classified as encumbered versus unencumbered open space.
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Noting that the reinstated vegetated area with daylighted creek is fantastic but
communication needs to be clear that this is not "unencumbered public open space”.

13. Community engagement - understanding community wishes:

As noted in other comments herein, the community and Council has only benefited from
viewing the concept design. The advent of the extended tunnel and removal of land
bridge crossings and green spaces means that the conversation needs to start again with
the community about the outcomes and expectations.

In the notes on the Interactive website, there is reference to nature play but the artists
impressions show a playground. How are the community expected to provide feedback
when there is not clarity on the proposed outcome from the outset?

14. How have youth spaces been included into the plan? There doesn’t appear to be any
mention of it. For example, dirt jumps and mountain bike tracks (and not pump tracks or
hard/concrete tracks). This would be a perfect area to include these given the proximity to
Watsonia and the train station there.

15. Suitability of land use within Borlase Reserve — is it the most appropriate location for a
half basketball court? More explanation needed for choice of “active” space usage within
the reserve

ACCESSIBILITY AND CONNECTIVITY

16. Improvements to active transport network / connections - overall support to the principle
of improving active transport connections north-south, including bridge connection over
Lower Plenty Road to connect to the main Yarra Trail linkage. Key issues or comments
include:

- location of trails, enhancing connections to existing trails and future-proofing
possible connections, ensuring sense of safety, visibility but creating unimpeded
flow for cyclists etc.

Shared path along Greensborough Road and bridge over Lower Plenty Road strongly
supported as per Project B1 page 36 of the Northern Regional Trails Strategy (2016).
Design guidelines for the shared path are detailed on page 17 — 20 of this document.

Regarding an east-west connection, recommendation 3 on page 22 of the Public Open
Space Plan Technical Report reads: Improve connectivity via the Melbourne Water
easement by constructing a path network that links Borlase Reserve to Coleen Street
Reserve South. This objective should be pursued.

There is still a request to investigate the long term possibility of a bridge over to the
western side of Greensborough Road and to avoid limiting this to proceed in future years
by the current design. Preference is to include this in the current proposal. For the
reasons previously stated.

17. East - West connections (includes discussion about separated connections over
Greensborough Road) - Banyule strongly advocates for east-west crossings (As per
previous submissions on the NELP UD Framework and Attachment A Simpsons Barracks
Lower Plenty Interchange A) and Council Open Space Plan. In particular the proposed
crossing link at Drysdale Road (Map UDFP3B Aqua Reference Point 1D) does not appear in
the drawings for Workshop 1. Refer Attachment 1 - Figure 4 and Figure 5. The workshop
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WETLANDS AND WATERWAYS

20. Integrated Water Management and water harvesting opportunities:

It is recommend that an integrated water management approach to the design of this site
as previously advised. See notes above in relation to creating habitat links, open
waterway corridors. While we support the daylighting of the creek and the habitat and
ponding along the linear park, in addition to these, there are opportunities for water
harvesting, use of harvested water for irrigation (passive or active) into the landscape or
slow releasing into the waterway. Any lawn and mounds should consider the underground
infrastructure of tanks to harvest the tunnel and stormwater within the catchment.
Sufficient depth is available and excavation required for installation also minimum.
Council’s position on integrated water management supports this approach (refer to
Banyule Water Plan 2019-2023, Action 9, age 23). Refer also to Water For Victoria 2016
(section 5) for the state government supporting documentation.

21. The Northern Interface Zone appears not to be covered by Spark in the UDLP. Will the
Urban Design Requirements (Part H16, 4. Urban Design and Landscape Plan 4.2
Requirements) apply in areas not being designed by Spark to ensure equity in investment
and the attainment of the EPRs?

22. Borlase Reserve retarding basin - given there are paths surrounding it, provide
appropriate batter and fencing. Suitable area of treatment needed if the depth of the
batter is increased (eg. fencing)

ROAD NETWORK AND TRAFFIC OPERATIONS/ACCESS

23. Missing any detail on the Manningham Road location and as a result we do not
understand any implications for trail connections, open space impacts, Yarra Crossing in
this location yet. As per previous submissions Council supports the IAC recommendation
No.8 to include Active Transport complementary projects suggested by Banyule Council,
including:

- Provision of a safe shared use underpass at Banksia Street (on Main Yarra Trail).
- Upgrades of the Main Yarra Trail between Banksia Street and Burke Road and in
the Banyule Flats.

- An on road bicycle route on Yarra St, Heidelberg (to connect to the bridge
proposed above).

24. Itis unclear why Greensborough Road (Boulevard) has been nominated as 6 lane divided
highway. This is an increase in the capacity of the arterial road network immediately
adjacent to NEL. This is a deviation from the reference design that requires explanation.
NEL should cater for the through movement, not Greensborough Road.

25. The Lower Plenty Rd interchange access and egress points are further north than the
reference design. This combined with changes to the Manningham Rd interchange
reference design, to now only cater for southbound entry and northbound exit
movements, will result in a re-distribution of the original traffic modelling, not only on the
arterial road network but all the local road network.

26. There is further road discontinuance in the Yallambie area east of NEL, in comparison with
the reference design. Borlase St will not be extended to Coleen St, limiting access to this
residential catchment.
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27.

There is further road discontinuance in the Yallambie area east of NEL, in comparison with
the reference design. Borlase St will not be extended to Coleen St, limiting access to this
residential catchment.

28.

Revised traffic modelling must be provided for review and comment in relation to the
above items.

29.

With Borlase Street being terminated at Coleen Street, that changes the function of the
Crew St/Lower Plenty Rd intersection. Traffic will only one option to access this catchment
along Coleen Steet —what traffic modeling and impact assessment has been done for this
intersection? What are the upgrades/changes to this access point for the proposed
design?

30.

Residential properties on the west side of Greensborough Road, between Lower Plenty Rd
and Finlayson St, appear to have vehicular access via extended driveways and possibly a
parking lane. Was a service road interface considered in this location?

31.

Consideration should be given to extending the Service Rd south of Yallambie Rd to
Cooley Ave for improved residential property access, including waste collection.

32.

Drawings show severed connection to Coleen Street from Borlase Street - please provide
more information in this section in relation to impacts on local roads.

33.

The current opening at Drysdale Street to Lower Plenty Road is temporary and should be
noted when designing future local road use in this section.
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demonstrated. The approved UDS states that the visual bulk and size will be minimised
through landform and vegetation and innovative design. The vegetation shown in the
image presented in the workshop presentation does little to obscure the view of the
structure, but it is not clear what the mature height of any plantings will be. The view of
the structure from other angles has not been shown to clearly demonstrate that it will be
integrated with the landform. It's not clear whether the image on the cover of the
presentation is of the northern ventilation structure.

The colours and materials of the base of the structure do not appear to be of the same
standard as the top section and may easily be graffitied.

PUBLIC TRANSPORT

37. All existing bus stop locations are to be confirmed based on any proposed changes to
these bus services (DoT to confirm). Relevant positions guidelines to be used for new
locations. A number of these existing shelters are Council owned and maintained, with
some having advertising panels. There is a commercial arrangement regarding these
panels that needs to be retained.

38. Bus stop locations: review and rationalize locations of bus stops on both sides of
Greensborough Road near proposed crossings. It is recommended to research new stop
locations based on the altered infrastructure in this area. Please confirm that route 513 is
a permanent route taken into account for this design.

SHARED USER PATHS / FOOTPATHS

39. All footpaths should have a continuous path of travel across the frontage of all properties
on the west side of Greensborough Rd, continuing this alignment across each side street
(local road that intersects Greensborough Rd). Some deviate, some terminate.

40. Except for Lenola St, there is no access to the SUP from the eastern residential catchment,
north of Yallambie Rd.

41. For the SUP bridge south of Lower Plenty Road, the point of connection comes to grade
near the pedestrian waiting area at the signals - cyclists coming down to ground level
from the bridge structure may not stop in time or may collide with pedestrians in this
section. It is preferred that the bridge structure reaches ground level about 10m away
from the pedestrian waiting area to provide additional stopping and sight distance to
avoid conflict.
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GENERAL

46. The present design of the northern portal in this package is effectively setting up the
future UDLP for the northern package, which is a limitation of the design solution. An
extension of the proposed Greensbhorough Rd blvd treatment up to Elder Street is
desirable — the tree lined sections and landscaping etc. This is line with Council’s advocacy
to extend the tunnel and avoid an open trench in Watsonia.

This is a better outcome for residential areas in this vicinity, rather than green land
bridges that concentrate all the landscaping in two sections of land away from houses and
people.
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Executive Summary

Introduction

This Asset Plan outlines key elements involved to sustainably and effectively manage Council's infrastructure
assets. This Plan is a key element of Council's strategic asset management planning.

The purpose of this plan is to:

Demonstrate Council's responsibility to manage infrastructure assets;

Define and articulate how infrastructure assets are managed to achieve the organisation’s goals and
objectives;

Understand the current condition of infrastructure assets and how they may look in 10 years;
Facilitate stakeholder consultation to determine appropriate levels of service;

Manage risk of premature asset failures;

Manage assets by optimising lifecycle costs and supportlong term financial planning;

Meet Council’s obligation to comply with the Local Government Act 2020.

The outcome of this plan will identify future funding requirements for service delivery considering the condition
of assets, levels of service to be provided, future demand and risk management.

Asset Portfolio

This plan focused on Council's fixed infrastructure assets (excluding land and trees) of $386 million. Six asset

categories included in this plan are:

Roads, including kerb and channel and carparks

Fmdm it
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1. Introduction

This Asset Plan outlines key elements involved to sustainably and effectively manage Council's infrastructure
assets. It combines engineering, technical practices and financial management to ensure that services are
provided to the community by minimising the lifecycle cost.

This Plan is a key element of Council's strategic asset management planning. The purpose of this plan is to:

e Demonstrate Council's responsibility to manage infrastructure assets;

+ Define and articulate how infrastructure assets are managed to achieve the organisation’s goals and
objectives;

¢ Understand the current condition of infrastructure assets and how they may look in 10 years;
« Facilitate stakeholder consultation to determine appropriate levels of service;

¢ Manage risk of asset failure;

*« Manage assets by optimising life cycle costs and support long term financial planning;

¢ Meet Council’s obligation to comply with the Local Government Act 2020.

The outcome of this plan will check financial sustainability of Council's infrastructure assets and identify future
funding requirements for service delivery considering the following factors:

¢ Current levels of service and status of assets;
+ Predicted level of service and status of the assets in 10 years;
» Future demand for infrastructure;

¢ Assetfailure and risks involved;

— s . " "
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Recurrent Expenditure

Recurrent expenditure includes both operational and maintenance activities to provide services.

Operation is regular activity required to maintain the service level even if the assets are in excellent condition
without any defects. For instance, cleaning, street sweeping, utilities costs.

Maintenance is the regular on-going work that is necessary to keep assets operating, including instances where
portions of the asset fail and need immediate repair to make the asset operational again, e.g. pothole patching
and crack sealing of road, footpath wedging and grinding, replacing or repairing small components of buildings.
Maintenance actions do not extend the life of assets.

Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure includes renewal, upgrade, expansion and new assets.

Renewal expenditure is major work which does not increase the asset’s design capacity but restores,
rehabilitates, replaces or renews an existing asset to its original service potential. Work over and above restoring
an asset to original service potential is considered to be an upgrade/expansion or new work expenditure
resulting in additional future operations and maintenance costs.

Examples of renewal include:

¢ Resurfacing roads
+ Replacing footpath segments, kerb and channel, bridge components
* Replacing drainage pipes and pits

* Replacing major building components (e.g. roof, kitchen, fit outs, mechanical, any structural
components)

e Replacing existing Parks and Open Space assets (e.g. playground, BBQ, seats)
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1.5 Financial Sustainability

Good asset management practice relies on Council being financially sustainable. The Victorian Auditor General
Office (VAGO) uses Renewal Gap Ratio (RGR) and Capital Replacement Ratio (CRR) as indicators relating to asset
management. The RGR is calculated by comparing renewal and upgrade expenditure to depreciation and the

CRR is capital expenditure to depreciation.

Table 2 outlines the criteria VAGO applies to assess each council's financial sustainability risk.

Table 2 | Criteria to Assess Financial Sustainability Risk

Risk Renewal Gap Ratio Capital Replacement Ratio
High Less than 0.5 Less than 1.0
- Spending on existing assets has not kept Spending on capital works has not kept pace
pace with consumption of these assets. with consumption of assets.
Medium [0.5to 1.0 1.0to 1.5
- May indicate insufficient spending on May indicate spending on asset renewal is
renewal of existing assets. insufficient.
Low More than 1.0 More than 1.5
- Low risk of insufficient spending on assets. Low risk of insufficient spending on asset
renewal.

The following section highlights the current capital expenditure for various asset classes for the next 10 years. It
also predicts the expenditure required for the same analysis period and identifies gaps.

28
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Engagement participants suggested potential improvements to each of the outdoor dining
parklets. Common themes across most or all parklets were the addition of outdoor heating and
covers/enclosures for cold and wet weather, Council to grant permanency, and an expansion of
the parklet ‘footprint’ or new parklet locations added in Banyule. Removal of the parklets was
usually mentioned as the fourth or fifth most common “improvement”.

Regarding Council's pending decision on the future of the outdoor dining parklets, the
consistent view was that Council should expand the program to other locations, improve the
parklets for use in colder weather, or just keep the original parklets as they are currently (same
locations, no expansion).

There was a range of views from businesses about future funding models and any future
process for seeking additional outdoor dining parklets. Of the 32 businesses, ten believed that
businesses who directly benefit should fully fund the costs and ongoing maintenance and
another eight proposed an alternate option that the relevant businesses and Council should
share the costs by formal agreement. A number of options were mentioned for new businesses
seeking additional outdoor dining parklets including consulting with the Traders Associations,
conducting an annual expression of interest/application process with a set Council budget or
assessment on a case-by-case basis.
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1.2 Financial Management Principles

Like every other Council, Banyule City Council's financial position over the coming decade is likely to be
increasingly challenging. The State Government rate capping regime will significantly limit Council's ability to
raise funds from its operations. At the same time Council will continue to experience increasing cost pressures
associated with an ageing population, ageing capital infrastructure and continued cost shifting from other levels
of government. This situation is not expected to change in the foreseeable future.

The purpose of the Banyule City Council Financial Plan is to ensure we can continue to deliver high-quality
services to our community, provide job security and stability for our highly valued workforce and continue to
meet our capital requirements while investing in new capital and infrastructure. The Financial Plan provides
context and structure to many of the innovative financial strategies Council has adopted in recent years
including our strategic approach to property acquisition and development.

The Financial Plan establishes a prudent and sound financial framework, combining and integrating financial
strategies to achieve a planned outcome; a financial measurement framework against Council's plans and
policies and ensures that Council complies with sound financial management principles, as required by the Local
Government Act 2020 and to plan for the long-term financial sustainability of Council.

In addition, Banyule City Council will continue to focus on operational efficiencies, support initiatives that deliver
financial savings to Council and reduce Council reliance on property rates to fund services and infrastructure
and reduce debt.

The Financial Plan demonstrates the following financial management principles:

* Revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments and financial transactions are managed in accordance
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¢ The community's level of influence is clear in each instance and that participants are fully informed.

1.3.2. Banyule 2041 Shaping Our Future

Banyule undertook a comprehensive and meaningful engagement program throughout 2020/21 that
empowered and enabled community and Council to work together to plan for our future and how we would like
to getthere.

Throughout the Banyule 2041 - Shaping Our Future Project high-quality community engagement enabled us to
make well-informed decisions as well as achieve effective and transparent governance.

The aim of the Banyule 2041 - Shaping Our Future Project was to develop an innovative, aspirational and co-
designed Community Vision that guides Council's work in enhancing the municipality of Banyule over the next
20 years. Through a robust engagement program Council and community worked together to inform the:

¢ Community Vision that captures how the community want Banyule to be in 2041
¢ Council Plan that sets out how Council is working toward that vision every 4 years

e Financial Plan that will guide how Council will remain financially sustainable while supporting the
Community Vision and the Council Plan.

¢ The Budget and the Revenue and Rating Plan that defines how revenue is generated through various
sources.

Information about the Banyule 2041 - Shaping Our Future project can be found on Council's website.

In 2022 the iterations of these Plans have drawn on data from last year's Banyule 2041 deliberative engagement
and other consultation processes. The draft ten-year Asset Plan 2022-32 has also drawn on this data. Given
much of these documents were established through these earlier processes, the community engagement
activities planned in 2022 will target those areas that community can influence to build on data from Council's
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The Financial Plan provides the mechanism to demonstrate how the service aspirations within the Council
Plan may be funded.

e Services are accessible to the relevant users within the community.

* Council provides quality services that provide value for money to the community. The Local Government
Performance Reporting Framework (LGPRF) is designed to communicate council's performance regarding
the provision of quality and efficient services.

« Council is developing a performance monitoring framework to continuously improve its service delivery
standards.

* Council is developing a service delivery framework that considers and responds to community feedback
and complaints regards service provision.

1.5 Asset Plan Integration

Integration to the Asset Plan is a key principle of the Council's strategic financial planning principles. The
purpose of this integration is designed to ensure that future funding is allocated in a manner that supports
service delivery in terms of the plans and the effective management of Council's assets into the future.

The Asset Plan identifies the operational and strategic practices which will ensure that Council manages assets
across their life cycle in a financially sustainable manner. The Asset Plan, and associated asset management
policies, provide council with a sound base to understand the risk associated with managing its assets for the
community's benefit.

The Asset Plan is designed to inform the 10-year Financial Plan by identifying the amount of capital renewal,
backlog and maintenance funding that is required over the life of each asset category. The level of funding will
incorporate knowledge of asset condition, the risk assessmentissues as well as the impact of reviewing and
setting intervention and service levels for each asset class.
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2. Financial Plan Context

This section describes the context and external /internal environment and consideration in determining the 10-
year financial projections and assumptions and risks.

2.1 Municipal Demographics

Banyule's estimated resident population for 2021 is 129,387. The municipality has an older age profile compared
to Greater Melbourne. Older adults aged 50+ years make up 36% of Banyule’s population compared to 31% of
the population in Greater Melbourne.

Banyule's population is forecast to grow to 165,256 by 2041 at an average annual growth rate of 1%. The
population aged 80 years and over is forecast to have the largest growth across the municipality.

Banyule is a diverse municipality. Residents come from over 140 countries and around 120 different languages
are spoken at home. Skilled migrants comprise the bulk of recent migration in Banyule, followed by those who
settled through family reunion. Humanitarian arrivals represent the smallest proportion of migrant intake.

The City is substantially developed and while itis experiencing a small increase in property numbers, these
mainly arise from higher density developments. Council continues to support appropriate increases in
development density around its activity centres which will have ongoing implications for many service areas and
infrastructure provision. Council's structure planning processes for these precincts are well established. Council
has implemented an open space contribution scheme and an infrastructure development contribution plan.

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 186



Item: 8.3 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Revised Financial Plan 2022-32

2.3 Economic and Fiscal Indicators

Economic circumstances include macro and micro levels. In the broader economic climate circumstances these can
include heightened levels of uncertainty about economic conditions and outcomes.

While the economic outlock is positive, sourcing labour, supply change disruptions and material shortages continue
to be the biggest challenges. Rising staffing costs and the impact of geopolitical tensions have added new challenges
to businesses already facing an uphill battle. Business and consumer confidence will drive the local economy and
the return of international visitors and visa holders will further its growth, particularly in the tourism, education,
hospitality and agricultural sectors.

Gross Domestic Product (GDP) rose 3.4% in the December 2021 quarter as NSW, Victoria and the ACT came out of
extended lockdowns in October 2021. Household spending rose 6.3% in this quarter exceeding pre-pandemic levels
for the first time as lockdown restrictions eased. In line with this recovery in activity, the labour market has also
performed better than expected.

In the year ending June 2021, there were 48,414 jobs in Banyule. Employment grew strongly over the latter part of
2020, and the national unemployment rate declined to 5.1% in December 2021. The unemployment rate in Banyule
dropped to 3.7% in December 2021.

The cashrate is Australia's official interest rate which is currently held at a target of 0.10% by the Reserve Bank of
Australia (RBA). It has remained at this rate since March 2020, with the RBA indicating it is unlikely to lift it until
annual inflation is within the 2-3% target range. The RBA does not forecast a rate rise until 2024.

At the micro level, circumstances within municipalities may influence decisions. These circumstances can include
the general economic condition or likely outcomes for stakeholders (particularly ratepayers) in a municipality. For
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absorbed by local governments over many years and have now become unsustainable, particularly since
councils have been subject to rate caps.

From 1 July 2022 Council are proposing to separate out the cost of both public waste services and kerbside
waste collection services into two new waste rates. These will appear as individual items on rates notices.

We also continue to fund other ongoing environmental initiatives, including solar system and energy-efficient
subsidies, environmental grants, home energy audits, plus host a range of educational workshops. All these
measures are reducing our carbon footprint and making our City more sustainable.

2.3.3 Local jobs creation

Through investing in our substantial capital works program and partnering with other government initiatives,
Council is stimulating the local economy. Combined with the ongoing success of our inclusive jobs and social
enterprises initiatives, we are helping to create more local jobs in the municipality and transforming lives by
providing opportunities to learn skills, gain experience and improve financial security.

In the year ending June 2021, there were 48,414 jobs in Banyule. The largest employer in the municipality is the
Health Care and Social Assistance industry, making up 36% of all employment, followed by Education and
Training (10%), Retail Trade (9%) and Construction (8%). A considerable proportion of the people who work in
Banyule also live in the area (36%).

2.3.4 Land Fill Levy

Under the State Government's Recycling Victoria waste policy, the landfill levy will increase by 61% by 2022/23.
The Land Fill Levy payable to the State Government upon disposal of waste into landfill results in additional
waste tipping costs. The levy has increased from $9 per tonne in 2008/09 to $105.90 per tonne in 2021/22 and
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2.3.6 Cost Shifting

Local Government provides a service to the community on behalf of the State and Commonwealth Government.
Over time the funds received by local governments have notincreased in line with real cost increases. Examples
of services that are subject to cost-shifting include school crossing supervisors, library services and home &
community care for aged residents. Council continues to monitor services in these areas and advocate to ensure
equity under the 'fair go rates system'rate cap environment.

2.4 Financial Policy Statements and Risk Management

This section defines the policy statements, risk, and associated measures, that demonstrates Council's financial
sustainability to fund the aspirations of the Community Vision and the Council Plan.

2.4 Strategic Actions

Council's strategic actions to influence long term financial sustainability include:

¢ Generate enough cash to fund capital works and meet the asset renewal requirements as outlined by
the VAGO financial sustainability ratios.

¢« Encourage more operational innovation to enhance operating activities and control expenditure at levels
that can consistently support the funding requirements of the capital works program and provision of
quality services.

¢ Support the growth of non-rate revenue to achieve greater diversification of the currentrevenue base
and provide flexibility within which to better manage rate revenue increases within the rate cap.

+ Balance meeting the ongoing core service needs of our community, expectations and quality of delivery
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* Advocacy / engagement
¢ Urban development and transport
+ Governance and reform

*» Employment pathways and social enterprise.

2.4 3 Risk Management

Significant work has been undertaken in relation to Council's Risk Management Framework and ongoing
consideration of risk - particularly in reference to Council's consideration of Strategic and Enterprise risks.

Strategic Risks are the risks where Council has little to no control or influence over the risk materialising.
Strategic Risk focuses on uncertainty - they are risks where the causes are external to the organisation that, if
they were to occur, would be serious enough that a change in strategic direction may be required. Conversely,
Enterprise risk focuses on those risks where Council has significant control/influence in relation to the risk
materialising.

The Strategic Risks identified by Council are:

1) Increase in the number and/or severity of climate influenced major disaster events impact Council's ability to
deliver services and infrastructure and increasing the burden on Council to support the community.

As the climate changes, modelling has predicted an increase in the number and severity of natural
disaster events. This may require changes to Council's strategy in relation to increased requirements for
new builds; consideration of zoning restrictions as well as the types of services offered by Council during
disaster events. This risk takes account of Council's ability to deliver services and infrastructure as well as
the increased burden on resources that will be required to provide adequate support to the community.

2) State/Federal major projects do not adequately factor in local amenity and connectivity needs resulting in
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account of global incidents such as a pandemic which can see a short-medium term impact on
businesses and the wider community.

7) Changes in demographics across the local government area are not properly considered and planned,
resulting in inefficient long-term resource allocation.

With the new road and rail projects to be completed in the next few years, the appeal of Banyule LGA as
a place to live is likely to increase. With that may come a change in the demographic across Banyule. This
may resultin current services being over and/or underutilised and/or required services not available.
This could see a significant change to Council's structure/strategy and long-term community plans.

Some of the above strategic risks have been outlined within this section and how they may influence this
Financial Plan. Generally, Section 2 of this Financial Plan provides more specific details of these strategic risks
such as population growth, rate capping, reliance on supplementary rates and financial assistance grants and
other grant funding from the State and Federal Governments. These in turn have influenced several
assumptions made in section 2.5 below on income generation.

The Enterprise Agreement (EA) is currently in negotiation and remaining competitive within the labour market to
recruit skilled specialists has been challenging.

Council has an ongoing obligation to fund any investment shortfalls in the Defined Benefits Scheme. The last call
on Local Government was in the 2012/13 financial year where Council was required to pay $9.12 million to top
up its share of the Defined Benefits Scheme. The amount and timing of any liability dependent on the global
investment market.

Councils have a duty of care in the context of climate change adaptation that is recognised in law. The Victorian
Government outlines how failure to act may leave your council open to claims of negligence. Acting on climate

change is no longer optional.

The Environment Protection Agency (EPA) regulation has a sustained impact on Council with regards to
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2.5 Assumptions to the financial plan statements

2.5.1 Assumptions

This section presents information regarding the assumptions to the Comprehensive Income Statement for the

10 years from 2022/23 to 2031/32. The assumptions comprise the annual escalations / movement for each line
item of the Comprehensive Income Statement.

The projections are based on known information at a point in time. The assumptions used for income
and expenditure are:

The average annual rate increase matches the projected rate cap e.g. 1.75% for year 1.

The annual increase of Grants, User Fees & Charges, Statutory Fees & Charges, Contribution income,
Rental Income and Other Income match projected CPI.

Interest income is based on predicted cash flows, cash balance and investment returns. The interest rate
returns are predicted to remain low with a return aligned to CPI.

The assumption for Council's Employee Benefit expenditure is based on 25 basis points less than Rate
Cap, and an additional 0.50% has been included each year for natural banding level increments.

The super guarantee rate increased to 10.00% on 1 July 2021 and continue increase by 0.50% increments
each year until it reaches 12.00% by 1 July 2025. For 2022/23 the rate will be 10.50%.

A superannuation call has not been factored into this plan.
Other expenses are assumed at 25 basis points less than CPI.

Utility charges increase more than CPI, but there is an assumed reduction in usage.
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2.5.3.2 User fees

The balance of fees and charges is discretionary in that Council can levy the amount it believes is equitable for
each service/item. Council in its determination of user fee increases has taken into consideration the needs and
accessibility of the community; demand for the service, pricing and cost to sustain a viable service.

Community fees are fees where no competition for the service exists. The services provided aim to strengthen
capacity and connections to build healthy and strong communities. Council aim to encourage greater
participation across the municipality and maintain sustainable community affordability by keeping these fees
low.

Commercial fees represent 66% of Council's user fees. The fees for these services are predominately provided to
commercial clients, or for the services operating under a commercial environment and have been maintained
where possible to reflect CPlincreases, to balance cost recovery, competitive pressures and council's financial
sustainability objectives.

Details of user fees for the 2022/23 budget year can be found in Council's schedule of Fees and Charges thatis
adopted in conjunction with the budget. Revenue increases for the ensuing years are based on a conservative
annual rate in line with CPI.

The increase in fees and charges revenue will need to be balanced with the appropriate utilisation of services to
ensure demand in services is maintained and increased where practical.

2.5.4 Grants

Council currently receives grants for tied (specific purpose grants) and un-tied Financial Assistance grant funding
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2.3.6.1 Interest Income

Interest income is predominantly made up of the interest received on Council’s cash holdings. With interest
rates at historical lows, the income generated from investments has declined over time placing pressure on
other sources of income to fund operations.

An Investment Strategy and Policy have been developed and approved. Council will have implemented this
strategy and commenced reporting and monitoring of the outcomes during 2022. It is expected that the
investment return on the overall portfolio will achieve its targeti.e. CPI+2.50% outlined in the strategy.

2.3.6.2 Rental Income

Rental income for all residential and commercial properties is expected to increase at contracted rates or CPl in
2021/22. Rental Income represents 1.62% of Council's income budget.

2.3.6.3 Developer Contribution Scheme (DCP)

A DCP is a financial management tool to help fund Council's capital works commitment for projects that serve a
community's changing profile. Because Banyule has an established community, only a portion of the total
project cost can be allocated to a DCP and paid by developers.

A DCP enables Council to require developers to pay a contribution. In most instances, the need for paymentis
triggered by a planning permit condition. For smaller developments, like extensions to shops and offices,
payment can be triggered by a building permit only. Contributions are then paid before a Statement of
Compliance is given for land subdivision or before a building permit can be issued.

Development contributions fall into two categories, these are for:
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Other associated costs included under this category are materials and consumable items for a range of services,
insurances, and motor vehicle operating costs. Council also utilises external expertise on a range of matters,
including legal services, consultants, contractors and auditors.

These costs are kept within CPI levels where possible and according to specific contract agreements with service
providers.

2.5.9 Depreciation & amortisation
Depreciation estimates have been based on the projected capital spending contained within this Financial Plan

document. Depreciation has been further increased by the indexing of the replacement cost of Council's fixed
assets.

2.5.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs comprise the interest expense to service Council's loan portfolio that is described in Section 5.1
Debt Management Strategic Plan.

2.5.11 Other expense categories

Other expenses are assumed at 25 basis points less than CPI. Utility charges increase more than CPI, but there is
an assumed reduction in usage.

2.5.12 Working Capital

The V-Shape in working capital over the 10 years reflects the capital investment to growth assets, i.e. properties,
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The cap applies to both general rates and municipal charges and is calculated based on council's average rates
and charges. local government expenditures can be highly variable due to the nature of capital works programs,
damage to infrastructure assets from fire, storms and flood, and related increased service needs, operating
costs being subject to increases significantly beyond CPI (such as materials), cost shifting between levels of
government and other one-off impacts such as calls to fund unfunded superannuation liabilities.

While some of these costs may be supported by other forms of funding such as grants, in the absence of
matching revenue streams, entities must resort to alternative funding avenues. To assist Council to better
manage the State Government Waste reforms a kerbside waste collection service and public waste services will
be removed from general rates and be levied as two separate waste service rates. This will be introduced in
2022/2023 through the Revenue and Rating Plan 2022-2026.

2.6.2 Debt Levels

Borrowing is generally regarded as an appropriate means of funding an enterprise. For councils this is because
they do not have a fixed capital base and funding needs will be likely to exceed cash reserves at various times.
Funding for councils, as for other public sector levels, can be particularly beneficial given the security of councils’
income streams and therefore ability to service debt. This security translates into generally lower servicing costs
making debt more attractive (compared to other types of entities) as a funding source.

Councils do not have recourse to capital, other than in the form of accumulated surpluses. Apart from fees and
charges which contribute to Council operations generally, debt provides a buffer to assist in maintaining stable
rating. The funding structure of a Council should reflect its existing and planned cash requirements. Planned
cash requirements should be based on an entity's strategic plans, existing financial position and budgeted and
forecast cash flows.

BAarrmnninmae ara racraanicand ae o lamitiraata and racmancikhla financial rmansaamant taal whan tiead fare
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The planned capital expenditure will need to be increased when implementing the Community Climate Action
Plan to achieve Zero net emissions by 2040. In addition, any additional demands for Major Projects will be a
challenge to funding within current operational surpluses.

The associated costs of new assets will require additional maintenance and management and Council will need
to factor these costs into the future operational costs of Council.

2.6.5 COVID-19 Business Impact

Council has monitored the COVID-19 business impacts throughout 2020-2022. The effects on the economy
including Councils’ various services and business are seeing a slow but steady financial recovery.

2.6.6. Cash Reserves

Council has significant cash reserves that are also used to fund a variety of capital projects. These reserves are
either 'statutory’ or 'discretionary' cash reserves. Statutory reserves relate to cash and investments held by
Council that must be expended on a specific purpose as directed by legislation or a funding body, and include
contributions to car parking, drainage and public reserves and recreation.

Discretionary cash reserves relate to those cash and investment balances that have been set aside by Council
and can be used at Council's discretion, even though they may be earmarked for a specific purpose.

+ Council has allocated a yearly optimal closing cash of $70m to support long-term sustainability and to
provide a strong liquidity position for viability and solvency. It should also be noted that the cash balance
may be needed in the future to accommodate the possibility of a superannuation liability call for the
defined benefit members. A superannuation call has not been factored into this draft Financial Plan.

» The cash generated from Council's operating activities is estimated to be approximately $37m over the
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4.3.3 (L2) - Unrestricted Cash

Unrestricted cash as a percentage of current liabilities

This is an indicator of the broad objective that sufficient cash is free of restrictions and available to pay bills as
and when they fall due. Council's liquidity position will continue at a high level, reflecting our continued sustainable
financial operations, although reducing gradually over the years.

ltems which are restricted under the definition are:

e trust funds and deposits

e statutory or non-discretionary reserves

e cash held to fund carry forward capital works

« conditional grants unspent

Term deposits with an original maturity of greater than 90 days (i.e. other financial assets) are also considered to

be restricted under this definition.

43.4 (02, 03) - Loans and Borrowings

Interest bearing loans and borrowings as a percentage of rate revenue and Interest and principal repayments
on interest bearing loans and borrowings as a percentage of rate revenue

The trend of these indicators reflects Council's reducing reliance on debt. Council will continue to pay down
existing debt while rate revenue will continue to rise in line with the rate cap. The trend has accelerated in
recent years as a result of Council's debt reduction strategy. This accelerated repayment includes a large
payment to complete one of our loans in October 2021. There is a slight increase in loans and borrowings in
2022/23. associated with Council's expected apolication for a loan as part of the Victorian Government's
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4.3.7 (31) - Rates Concentration

Rate revenue as a percentage of adjusted underlying revenue

This indicates the extent of reliance on rate revenue to fund all of Council's ongoing services. This trend
indicates Council's reliance on rates is holding relatively steady.

43.8 (S2) - Rates Effort

Rate revenue as a percentage of the capital improved value of rateable properties in the municipality

This is an indicator of the broad objective that the rating level should be based on the community's capacity to
pay. Low or decreasing level of rates suggest an improvement in the rating burden for ratepayers.

Note: Council policy is not to estimate future movements in property values and assume that they will hold
steady from the most recent CIV figures.

43.9 (E2) - Expenditure Level

Total expenses per property assessment

This is an indicator of the broad objective that resources should be used efficiently in the delivery of services.
Low or decreasing level of expenditure suggests an improvement in organisational efficiency.

4.3.10 (E4) — Revenue Level

The average rate revenue per property assessment
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9. Strategies and Plan

This section describes the strategies and plans that support the 10-year financial projections included in the
Financial Plan.

5.1 Borrowing Strategy

5.1.1 Current Debt Position

Council's debt management strategic plan responds to Council's strategic direction and considers Council’s
long-term financial sustainability.

The debt management strategic plan addresses the following matters:
e The legislative framework
¢ Linkage to the Proposed Council Plan
* Sound financial management principles
* Current level of debt
« Forecastsustainability ratios.
The total amount borrowed as at 30 June 2022 was $20.81 million.
Banyule City Council significantly increased its debt levels between 2009 - 2013 to $60m due to an increased

level of strategic property acquisitions and expanding capital expenditure. The Financial Plan contains forecasts
that this debt will be reduced to $7.26 million by 30 June 2032.
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Expenditure from this Reserve must continue to be of a "public open space” nature, like parks,
parklands/reserves, playground equipment, etc. to satisfy the requirements of the legislation.

5.2.1.2 Off-Street Parking Reserve:

The Off Street Parking Reserve was a Statutory Reserve and the income was controlled by legislation.

The funds were received from developers when additional shops went into local shopping precincts in lieu of
providing the requisite car parking spaces. As of 2009, Council has ceased receiving additional income to fund
this reserve.

5.2.1.3 General Reserve (including Debt Redemption):

This Reserve is a general reserve designed to be used for purposes not covered by the other Reserves including
environmental projects.

In recent years, this reserve has been built up for the purpose of repaying Council’s loans when they are up for
review and able to be paid out without penalty.

5.2.14 Plant and Equipment Reserve:

The Plant and Equipment Reserve is used to fund the purchase of vehicles (fleet, waste trucks, etc) and some
other items of plant & equipment.

It is funded by an internal charge to each business unit for their vehicles less the running costs for those vehicles
(fuel, repairs, insurance, etc.). In recent years, due to a healthy balance, the Plant and Equipment Reserve has
been used to fund other non-plant types of "equipment”.
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5.2.1.8 Strategic Properties Reserve:

The Strategic Properties Reserve was created during 2010. The purpose was to fund dealings in property and
property developments with the express purpose of creating a profit to reduce the amount of income required
to be raised via Rates.

The Reserve was initially commenced via a Council loan, since then the Reserve has been funded via the sale of
properties, excess to Council needs, and properties developed by Council including the school sites.

This Reserve continues to be used to buy and sell property in order to fund future major projects and to reduce
the amount of income required to be raised by way of rates.

The remaining funds in the reserve can only be used for the express purpose of providing car parking
improvements in the shopping centre areas for which the funds were collected.

5.2.19 Car Parking Meter Reserve:

The Car Parking Meter Reserve was opened in during 2013 with the installation of parking meters in several
locations.

Council decided that 2/3rds of the net profit of operating the parking meters be transferred to a newly created
Reserve account. These reserve funds would be used to cover parking improvements and other parking related
expenditure in the suburbs from where it was collected.

5.2.1.10 Environmental Reserve (new):

The purpose of the reserve is to allocate and spend the savings on environmental projects. This reserve has only
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9.3 Revenue and Rating Plan

The adoption of a Revenue and Rating Plan is a new requirement under section 93 of the Local Government Act
2020. Consultation on the proposed Revenue and Rating Plan 2022-2026 was undertaken in accordance with
Council's Banyule Community Engagement Policy which was adopted in accordance with section 55 of the Local
Government Act 2020.

Banyule City Council's Revenue and Rating Plan 2022-2026 supports the rating principles used to levy rates and
charges, in collaboration with determining the Proposed Budget 2022-2026.

The Revenue and Rating Plan 2022-2026 outlines the framework under which Council will fund services, capital
works and initiatives over the four years that the plan is active. There is a requirement to ensure that services
are financially sustainable.

In funding services, capital works and initiatives, Council operates under restrictions imposed by the Fair Go
Rates System cap and grant allocations from the state and commonwealth government.

Banyule values appropriate commercial and industrial development. However, also acknowledge an increased
impact on our shared infrastructure by these developments. We choose to differentially rate these properties to
ensure an equitable outcome to infrastructure costs across our community.

The existing rating structure comprises six differential rates being: residential improved, residential vacant,
commercial improved, commercial vacant, industrial improved and industrial vacant.

e |tis proposed that the following rating principles are included in the rating framework:

o Rates being payable in four instalments only

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 218



Item: 8.3 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Revised Financial Plan 2022-32

An Investment Strategy has recently been developed by Council. Once fully implemented the financial return
outcomes will be updated from current projects. Banyule is also currently invested in several established
properties generating commercial returns and several properties which require further investment. Good
financial management requires considered assessment of the risks and benefits of investments.

9.4.1 Strategic Property Acquisition

Council, from time to time, may acquire property assets that are deemed to increase its ability to:

¢ Invest into an appreciating asset that can:
o Generate appropriate rental revenue
o Deliver growth in value
o Berealised at a future pointin time.
¢ Increase and provide pathways for property consolidation or growth
+ Enable a diversification of its property portfolio
¢ Influence and shape occupancy thatleads to social and economic development outcomes

¢ Provide for catalyst planning outcomes that demonstrate leadership underpinned by broad community
support

The general principles that will guide Council's acquisition methodology are to:
* Provide a financial return and a community benefit to Council
¢ Ensure the best use of existing, underutilised and/or surplus assets

» Comolement and ausment existine nlannine nolicv framewark asnirations
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e Generally, all sales of Council Land should occur at not less than market value assessed by a valuer
engaged by Council. However, if Council Land is sold for less than the market value, Council should
explain the circumstances, reasons or factors which led to the decision to accept a sale price that is less
than market value.

e Prior to being offered for sale, Council Land should be appropriately zoned. This will ensure that the
ultimate use of the Council Land is determined by that zone and the highest possible sale price is
achieved.

Council has made a deliberate decision to diversify its income sources through investment in property assets that have the capacity to provide a
return on investment. This includes investment in both commercial and residential properties.

5.5 Operational Efficiency

The concept of operational efficiency encompasses the practice of improving all your processes (all your
organisations activities that lead to your final community service). All these processes help the organisation
achieve a target, which may be in terms of improved and cost-effective services and greater capital works
delivery.

Care needs to be taken to not confuse efficiency with cutting costs, because it has other objectives besides
savings, such as improving our productivity and delivering an improved service to the customer at the centre.

There are several ways Council is approaching operational efficiency to achieve Banyule's strategic goals. This
includes a continued focus on

« reducing expenditure on external agency and consultancies;

¢ business-oriented initiatives that reduce Council reliance on property rates to fund services and
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« Enhanced quality of service delivery

« Simplified processes and procedures

e Attitudinal change

e Recognition of customers, both internal and external.

The continuous improvement process consists of strategies, systems and processes which drive incremental
and sustainable change to increase operational efficiency by improving service quality and reducing costs.

Council currently conducts business improvement reviews that may be generated from the service review
process or from incremental process changes.

Council is currently reviewing its quality systems to assess the effectiveness of the current program. This is
expected to result in a stronger focus on continuous improvement program based on proven methodologies
such as Lean. This will require a need to skill up staff to successfully implement a program.

5.5.2 Service Reviews

Service reviews are undertaken across Council each year and recommendations for improvements are
implemented to ensure the best quality and cost of service delivery. Current review impacts are included in the
Strategic Resource Plan. The purpose of the service review program is best described by the following goals:

« Stronger framework to enhance strategic performance.
¢ In-depth, evidence-based decision making to enhance service
¢ Adherence to Strategic Objectives

e Rightservice at the right price (to the right users/community)

- I mndnrebhin imemaitlanamm e him thvaiirkh Mivacrtae amd Mam smaees
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Council needs to ensure that it is keeping pace with community demands and efficient business systems to run
Council operations. This requires a focus on ongoing investment in IT systems and infrastructure with additional
investment required to digitise manual process and provide online capability to the community.

Council is focussed on improving existing IT infrastructure and applications with a goal of removing aged
solutions and utilising existing unused functionality in our current applications. We want our community,
customers and staff to be empowered and enriched by digital capabilities that enable positive interactions and
service delivery outcomes. Council has a Digital Transformation Strategy and Plan to move Council to become a
more customer centric organisation.

5.5.4 Collahorative Procurement

Council is a member of the Northern Alliance of Council's and utilises Procurement Australia and MAV
Procurement for the procurement of goods, services and works undertaking a single competitive process. Each
of the members of this group can enter into a contract with the preferred service provider identified though this
competitive process. Alternatively, the members of the group may choose to enter into a contract with the
council which conducted the public tender.

There are significant advantages participating in collaborative procurement opportunities where the buying
power can be providing greater benefits.

Banyule is actively involved in collaborative procurement, particularly with the Northern Region. A significant
amount of data analysis and documentation review has been undertaken by the group with the objective of
identifying collaborative procurement opportunities across the region in an effort to achieve greater value for
money.

Revised 10 Year Financial Plan | 2022-2032 Page | 44
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1 Introduction

Council has a number of revenue streams that are used to fund the assets and services that are provided to the
community.

The most significant of these streams are rates revenue, fees & charges and grants income which combined
make up over 90% of Council income each year:

e Rates (approx. 62-63% of total revenue),

s Fees, charges & fines (approx. 18-20%) and

s Grants (approx. 10-11%).
Other streams of revenue that are not specifically covered as part of this plan include (but is not limited to);
Interest income, Contributions income, Rental income and Fair value adjustments.

These items are not included as part of this plan as they are either;

Covered under other Council plans and/or strategies (see Investment Policy, Public Open Space Plan, Lease &
License framework and Developer Contribution Plan),

Comparatively minor in nature, or
Council is unable to impact the revenue received.

To ensure the Local Government Act 2020 rating objectives of stability and predictability are achieved, itis
important that Banyule City Council has a Revenue and Rating Plan in place that is transparent to the
community and reviewed annually as part of the budget process.

The important matters to be considered in relation to the Revenue and Rating Plan include:

s The legislative framework

e What rates and charges can be declared
¢ The rate base

¢ Uniform or Differential rates

e Cultural and Recreational Lands

e Impact of Council revaluations and supplementary valuations
¢ The municipal charge

e Servicerates and charges

e Special rates

* Rebates and concessions

e Exempt Properties

« Collections

e Fire Services Property Lewy

Revised Revenue and Rating Plan | 2022-2026 D22/52439 Page | 3
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1.1 What is a Revenue and Rating Plan ?

The Local Government Act 2020 states that councils must adopt a Revenue and Rating Plan by the next 30 June
after a general election for a period of at least the next 4 financial years. Council adopted the first Revenue and
Rating Plan under the Act 2020 in June 2021 and has determined that the Revenue and Rating Plan will be
reviewed and updated each year with the annual 4-year Budget.

This Revenue and Rating Plan covers the period 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2026.

A Revenue and Rating Plan is the policy by which council systematically considers factors of importance that
informs its decisions about how Council raises revenue, including by the rating system Council uses. The rating
system determines how Council will raise money from properties within the municipality. It does notinfluence
the total amount to be raised, only the share of revenue contributed by each property. The rating system
comprises the valuation base and actual rating instruments allowed under the Local Government Act 1989 to
calculate property owners’ liability for rates.

The Local Government Act 2020 requires Councils to exercise sound financial management. In particular, the
Local Government Act 2020 states that the principles of sound financial management are:

a) revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments and financial transactions must be managed in
accordance with a Council's financial policies and strategic plans;

b) financial risks must be monitored and managed prudently having regard to economic circumstances;

c) financial policies and strategic plans, including the Revenue and Rating Plan, must seek to provide
stability

d) accounts and records that explain the financial operations and financial position of the Council must be
kept
Through Councils integrated planning framework Council ensures that all its activities and financial resources
are aligned to meet the aspirations, needs and expectations of the Banyule community. Integrated planning
documents include:

« Council Plan
s« Financial Plan
¢ AssetPlan

e Council Budget.

1.2 Objectives of the Council Plan

When considering the Revenue and Rating Plan, Council needs to meet the objectives set outin the Council Plan,
and as resourced through the Financial Plan. The Council Plan 2021-2025 was adopted in October 2021 and this
plan is reviewed annually to reflect changes in Council's annual actions (Annual Action Plan).

Council's commitment to managing resources wisely will be achieved through:

e Providing exceptional customer service

o Delivering best value services and facilities

e Providing responsible financial management and business planning
e Providing good governance and be accountable

* Promoting an engaged and productive organisation

¢ Managing the systems and assets that support service delivery

Revised Revenue and Rating Plan | 2022-2026 D22/52439 Page | 4
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Arating review was undertaken by the Victorian governmentin 2019. The government’s response to the review
was that there will be no fundamental changes at present to the way rates are levied in Victoria, with minor
changes intended to improve community understanding of the rating process, to improve the way council’s
budget and declare rates and to review possible changes to "smooth out” significant changes to rates as a result
of atypical changes in valuations.

2.1.1 Objectives

The legislation specifies several major objectives for the rating system:

¢ the equitable imposition of rates and charges

e areasonable degree of stability in the level of the rates effort

¢ contribute to the equitable and efficient carrying out of its functions

e apply principles of financial management, simplicity and transparency.

The two objectives which the rating system must have the greatest regard to are the achievement of equity and
efficiency.

2.1.2 Equity

Having determined that Council must review its Revenue and Rating Plan in terms of the equitable imposition of
rates and charges, it is a much more vexed question in terms of how to define and determine whatisin fact
equitable in the view of the Council.

Horizontal equity refers to justice or fairness in the treatment of like properties - in other words, that similar
rates are paid by similar properties. There is a fundamental importance on which characteristics define
similarity. On the assumption that property valuations fairly reflect the true valuation of like properties,
horizontal equity will be achieved.

Vertical equity refers to justice or fairness in the treatment of properties in different circumstances (e.g. different
property types - residential/commercial/ vacant land). Itimplies a "relativity” dimension to the fairness of the tax
burden.

The three main ways in which positions can vary are:

¢ the benefit or user pays principle - some groups have more access to, make more use of, and benefit
from more, specific council services;

« the capacity to pay principle - some ratepayers have more ability to pay rates than do others with
similarly valued properties;

* theincentive or encouragement principle - some ratepayers may be doing more towards achieving
council goals than others in areas such as environmental or heritage protection.

2.1.3 The Benefit Principle

A popular complaint levelled at councils is that “the rates | pay have no correlation with the services | consume
or the benefits | receive”. This argument is based on the benefit principle (the opposite of the wealth tax
principle) that argues there should be a nexus between consumption/benefit and the rate effort.

Application of the benefit principle is difficult in practice because of the complexity and, in some cases,
impossibility, of measuring the relative levels of access and consumption across the full range of council
services. In some ways the arguing of the benefit principle with respect to council rates is like trying to do the
same for the income tax thatis used to fund a wide range of universally accessed services.

It is likely to be quite costly to regularly undertake in-depth analyses on service access, consumption patterns
and costs in order to attempt to review the level of benefit, unless the service is widely used and measured, and
the costs are understood. In any event many subjective assumptions will have to be introduced. Other pricing

Revised Revenue and Rating Plan | 2022-2026 D22/52439 Page | 6
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instruments such as user charges, special rates and charges and service rates and charges better lend
themselves to dealing with the issue of benefit.

2.1.4 Capacity to Pay

Notwithstanding the practical limitations, council can make choices about the tax treatment of classes of real
property in so much as they believe that a class of property will reflect the financial position of a household or
business and its capacity to pay. However, the most vexed issue related to capacity to pay is assessing it across
different classes of property.

While personal income tax is more reflective of the capacity to pay, it is not possible to expect a property tax
system to deal practically with all aspects of capacity to pay based on individual households and businesses. It is
also not practical or acceptable to shift, modify or manipulate the existing system to the benefit of one group of
ratepayers at the expense of another unless such shift is widely accepted and for a proper purpose.

Council has the option of introducing a Council rebate to certain groups to reduce that property’'s rate effort.
Presently pensioners within the municipality can access the State Government Rebate.

Consideration of capacity to pay does become relevant when determining any flat or fixed charge as these
charges are regressive in nature.

2.1.5 Efficiency

Efficiency can be defined as the ratio of ends produced (output) to means used (inputs). In other words, it can be
considered directly related to the cost of administering the rates system. Administration costs include the
issuing of assessments, collection of rates, including maintaining and improving collection systems, monitoring
outcomes, educating and informing ratepayers, and enforcement and debt recovery. It also includes the
maximization of additional rate income through supplementary valuations by ensuring the timeliness and

arcirary nf amandad rata natirac
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2.2 Determining which valuation base to use

The purpose of this section is to outline the different methods that Council can utilise to value land and the
issues that Council must consider in making its decision on the valuation method.

2.2.1 Introduction

Three methods of valuing land are allowed under the Local Government Act 1989:

e Site Value (SV) - Value of land only

¢ Net Annual Value (NAV) - rental valuation based on Capital improvement Value (CIV). For residential and
farm properties, NAV is calculated at 5 per cent of the CIV. For commercial properties NAV is calculated
as the greater of the estimated annual rental value or 5 per cent of the CIV.

e CIV-value of land and improvements upon the land

Banyule uses CIV for rating valuation purposes.

2.2.2 Site Value (SV)

This method places a value on the land only and does not consider any value of any buildings constructed on
the land. It is not considered to result in the most equitable distribution of the rate effort.

With valuations based simply on the valuation of the land and with only very limited ability to apply differential
rates, the implementation of site value in Banyule would cause a significant shiftin rate effort from the business
sector into the residential sector. In addition, there would be further rating movements away from modern
townhouse style developments on relatively small land parcels to older established homes on the more typical
quarter acre residential block.

There is no Victorian Council that currently uses this valuation base.

2.2.3 Net Annual Value (NAV)

NAV, in concept, represents the annual rental value of a property. However, in practice, NAV is closely linked to
capital improved value. For residential properties Valuers derive the NAV directly as 5 per cent of the CIV.

In contrast to the treatment of residential, NAV for business properties are assessed with regard to the actual
market rental. This differing treatment of business versus residential has led to some suggestions that all
properties should be valued on a rental basis. There is currently no legislation that supports this suggestion.

Where a Council utilises NAV, it may only apply three differential rates. For example, City of Melbourne utilise
NAV, applying a differential rate for residential and non-residential land only.

2.2.4 Capital Improved Value (CIV)

CIV is the most commonly used valuation method by Victorian Local Government with most Councils applying
this methodology. Based on the value of both land and all improvements on the land, it is relatively easy to
understand by ratepayers as it equates to the market value of the property.

For CIV, business properties are valued primarily by the capitalisation method of valuation. This method of
valuation is the industry standard for assessing the value of business properties and has as its base sale price
and market rent of the property. For this reason, rental details are sought by Valuers every 2 years. When
analysed on a per square metre basis, rents provide a means of establishing the rental marketin a location.

The advantages of using CIV include:

e ClVincludes all improvements and hence is often supported on the basis that it more closely reflects
‘capacity to pay". The CIV rating method takes into account the full development value of the property,
and hence better meets the equity criteria than site value or NAV.
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¢ The concept of the market value of property is far more easily understood with CIV rather than NAV or
Site Value.

e The use of CIV allows Council to apply differential rates which greatly adds to Council's ability to
equitably distribute the rating effort based on ability to afford Council rates.

The major disadvantage with CIV, and indeed all the other rating methods, is that rates are based on the
property value which may not necessarily reflect the income level of the property owner as with pensioners and
low-income earners.

2.3 Determining the Rating System — Uniform or differential

The purpose of this section is to outline the two rating systems (uniform or differential) that Council can utilise
to apply rates and the issues that Council must consider in making its decision on the rating system.

2.3.1 Uniform rate

If a Council declares that general rates will be raised by application of a uniform rate, the Council must specify a
percentage as a uniform rate. A uniform rate will apply to the value of every rateable property within the
municipality.

Rates will be determined by multiplying the percentage (the rate in the dollar) by the value of the land.

Banyule believes that a uniform rate should not be applied to all properties because itis not equitable. Such a
rate does not reflect the use of Council services and infrastructure nor does it create incentive for best use of
property in the municipality.

Banyule has adopted differential rating as it considers that differential rating contributes to the equitable
distribution of the rating effort. Differential rating allows classes of properties to be assessed at differentlevels
from the general rate set for the municipality. Differential rating allows Council to shift part of the rate effort
from some groups of ratepayers to others, through different ‘rates in the dollar’ for each class of property.

Council is entitled to apply many differential rates provided it used CIV as its base for rating.

Section 161 of the Local Government Act 1989 outlines the regulations relating to differential rates. This section
is outlined below:

1) A Council must raise any general rates by application of a differential rate, if it uses the CIV system
of valuing rates,

a) Council considers that the differential rate will contribute to the equitable and efficient
carrying out of its functions.

2) If a Council declares a differential rate for any land, the Council must:

a) Specify the objectives of the differential rate, which must be consistent with the equitable
and efficient carrying out of the Councils functions and must include the following:

i. A definition of the types of classes of land which are subject to the rate and a
statement of the reasons for the use of that rate.

ii.  Anidentification of the type or classes of land which are subject to the rate in respect
of the uses, geographical location (other than location based on whether the land is
within a specific ward in Councils district) and planning scheme zoning of the land,
and
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iil. If there has been a change in the valuation system, any provision for relief from a
rate to ease the transition for that land, and

b) Specify the characteristics of the land which are the criteria for declaring the differential
rate.

The maximum differential allowed is no more than 4 times the lowest differential rate. For Banyule, the lowest
rate is the Residential Improved rate.

Council has the option of increasing each respective differential rate in order to influence the behaviour of
landowners.

There is no theoretical limit on the number or type of differentials which can be levied.

2.3.2 Differential Rates

Advantages of a differential rating system

The perceived advantages of utilising a differential rating system are:

e Thereis a greater flexibility to distribute the rate effort between all classes of property and therefore link
rates with the ability to pay and reflecting the tax deductibility of rates for businesses;

e Differential rates allow Council to better reflect the investment required by Council to establish
infrastructure to meet the needs to the commercial and industrial sector; and

* Enables Council to encourage developments through its’ rating approach e.g. encourage building on
vacant land.
Disadvantages of a differential rating system
The perceived disadvantages of utilising a differential rating system are:

¢ The justification of the differential rate can at times be difficult for the various rating groups to
understand, giving rise to gueries, objections and complaints.

s Differential rating involves a degree of administrative complexity, as properties can change from one
classification to another (e.g. vacant land to residential) requiring Council to process supplementary
valuations.

Objectives of the rate and characteristics
Council considers that each differential rate will contribute to the equitable and efficient carrying out of Council
functions.

Details of the objectives of each differential rate are set out below.

Residential/Commercial/Industrial Vacant Land
Objective:

To encourage the development of land and to ensure that such rateable land makes an equitable financial
contribution to the cost of carrying out the functions of Council, including the:

1. Implementation of good governance and sound financial stewardship; and
Construction, renewal, upgrade, expansion and maintenance of infrastructure assets; and

Development and provision of health, environmental, conservation, leisure, recreation, youth and family
community services; and

4. Provision of strategic and economic management, town planning and general supportservices; and
5. Promotion of cultural, heritage and tourism aspects of Council's municipal district.
Types and Classes

Any rateable land on which no dwelling is erected.
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Use and Level of Differential Rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure and Capital Works
described in the Budget adopted by Council.

The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary to achieve the
objectives specified above.

The differential is designed as an incentive to develop vacant land and to reflect the typically-higher
burden on Council of servicing and monitoring vacant land.

Geographic Location:

Wherever located within the municipal district.
Use of Land:

Any use permitted under the Banyule Planning Scheme.
Planning Scheme Zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the relevant Banyule Planning Scheme.

Commercial/Industrial Improved Land
Objective:

To ensure that such rateable land makes an equitable financial contribution to the cost of carrying out the
functions of Council having regard to the capacity of such land to be used to yield income and the demands
such land makes on Council’s infrastructure.

Those functions include the:

1. Implementation of good governance and sound financial stewardship; and
Construction, renewal, upgrade, expansion and maintenance of infrastructure assets; and

Development and provision of health, environmental, conservation, leisure, recreation, youth and family
community services; and

4. Provision of strategic and economic management, town planning and general support services; and
5. Promotion of cultural, heritage and tourism aspects of Council's municipal district.
Types and Classes:

Any rateable land which is used, or designed or adapted to be used, primarily for commercial or
industrial purposes.

Use and Level of Differential Rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure and Capital Works
described in the Budget adopted by Council.

The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary to achieve the
objectives specified above.

The differential is designed to reflect the nature of the services delivered in maintaining amenity in non-
residential areas.

Geographic Location:

Wherever located within the municipal district.
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Use of Land:
Any use permitted under the Banyule Planning Scheme.
Planning Scheme Zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the Banyule Planning Scheme.

Types of Buildings:

The types of buildings on the land within a differential rate are all buildings that are now constructed on
the land.

Residential Improved Land
Objective:

To ensure that such rateable land makes an equitable financial contribution to the cost of carrying out
the functions of Council, having regard to the relative benefits derived from the carrying out of such
functions.

Those functions include the:

1. Implementation of good governance and sound financial stewardship; and
Construction, renewal, upgrade, expansion and maintenance of infrastructure assets; and

Development and provision of health, environmental, conservation, leisure, recreation, youth and family
community services; and

4. Provision of strategic and economic management, town planning and general supportservices; and
5. Promotion of cultural, heritage and tourism aspects of Council's municipal district.
Types and Classes:

Any rateable land which is not Vacant Land, Commercial / Industrial Vacant Land or Commercial /
Industrial Improved Land.

Use and Level of Differential Rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure and Capital Works
described in the Budget adopted by Council.

The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary to achieve the
objectives specified above.

Geographic Location:

Wherever located within the municipal district.
Use of Land:

Any use permitted under the Banyule Planning Scheme.
Planning Scheme Zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the Banyule Planning Scheme.

Types of Buildings:
The types of buildings on the land within a differential rate are all buildings that are now constructed on
the land.
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2.4 Cultural and Recreational Lands

Objective:

To ensure that the promotion of cultural, heritage and recreational activity occurs within Council's municipal
district and that this is supported in a way that encourages appropriate activity and development.

Council has considered the service utilised by the lands and the benefit these lands provide to the community
by consideration of their cultural or recreational land use, as required under the Cultural and Recreational Land
Act 1963.

Types and Classes:

Under the provisions of the Cultural and Recreational Land Act 1963, the Council levies an amount in lieu
of rates payable in respect of recreational lands that have the following characteristics:

Any land which is not Residential Vacant Land, Commercial / Industrial Vacant Land or Commercial /
Industrial Improved Land, which is specifically set aside for the use of cultural and recreational pursuits
whereby the members do not derive a financial benefit or profit from the activities.

The Cultural and Recreational Land Act 1963 effectively provides for properties used for outdoor
activities to be differentially rated unless it involves land that is being leased from a private landowner.
The discretion of whether to provide a cultural and recreational lands rate rests with Council

The amount in lieu of rates payable in respect of each rateable land to which the Cultural and
Recreations Land rate applies is determined by the following methodology:

In Use Value X (Residential Improved rate X Questionnaire Weighting) X 36% (net cost of council services
available to the entity).

In Use Value has been determined as being 70% of the Capital Improved Value.
The Questionnaire weighting determines the level of benefit these lands provide to the community.

Currently Council has five properties that are currently defined as Cultural and Recreational properties in
accordance with the Cultural and Recreational Land Act 1963.

2.5 The Impacts of Revaluations and Supplementary Valuations

The purpose of this section is to provide an overview of the rate revaluation and supplementary valuation
processes.

2.5.1 Introduction

Under the Valuations of Land Act 1960, the Valuer-General revalues properties annually.

Property values are determined by qualified Valuers comparing each property to the recent sales figures of
similar properties in the neighbourhood. The key factors are location, land size, type of house and condition.

Valuations are conducted using Best Practice Guidelines formulated and published by the Valuer General
Victoria.

2.5.2 No Windfall Gain

There is a common misconception that if a property’s valuation rises then Council receives a “windfall gain” with
additional income. This is not so as the revaluation process results in a redistribution of the rate effort across all
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properties in the municipality. Any increase to total valuations of the municipality is offset by a reduction to the
rate in dollar (ad valorem rate) used to calculate the rate for each property. Total income is fixed each year as
part of the budget process

The general revaluation process enables Council to re-apportion the rate income across the municipality in
accordance with movements in property values. Properties which have increased in value by more than the
average will receive a rate increase of more than the headline rate. Properties with an increase in value less
than the average will receive a rate increase less than the headline rate.

2.5.3 Supplementary Valuations

In accordance with the Valuation of Land Act 1960 further Valuations are required to be carried out between
General revaluations, these are known as Supplementary Valuations.

Supplementary Valuations are completed when properties are physically changed by buildings being erected,
demolished or altered, when properties are amalgamated, subdivided, portions sold off, rezoned or roads
constructed.

Supplementary Valuations are adopted to bring the value of properties into line with values assigned to other
properties in the municipality. This is to ensure that as near as practicable the rating valuation reflects the
current property condition at the date prescribed for the General revaluation.

Supplementary valuations are conducted by contractors appointed by the Valuer-General and are subject to the
timing specified by the Valuer-General.

2.6 Municipal Charge

The purpose of this section is to outline the municipal charge that Council may utilise to apply rates and the
issues that Council consider when applying a municipal charge.

2.6.1 Introduction

In addition to differential rates, Council may declare a municipal charge to cover some of the administrative
costs of Council. Currently the total revenue from a municipal charge must not exceed 20% of the sum of the
general rates and municipal charge combined in a financial year.

The application of a municipal charge represents a choice to raise a portion of the rates by a flat fee for all
properties, rather than sole use of the CIV valuation method.

Banyule does not levy a Municipal Charge.

2.6.2 Advantages of a municipal charge

The arguments in favour of a municipal charge are they apply equally to all properties and are based upon the
recovery of fixed costs of providing administrative services irrespective of valuation. The same contribution
amount per assessment to cover a portion of Councils administrative costs can be seen as a practical method of
recovering these costs.

2.6.3 Disadvantages of a municipal charge

The argument against a municipal charge is that this charge is regressive in nature and would result in lower
valued properties paying higher overall rates and charges than they do at present. The equity objective in
levying rates against property values is lost in a municipal charge as itis levied uniformly across all assessments.
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2.1 Service Charges / Service Rates

The purpose of this section is to outline the service charges that Council currently applies and new charges that
could be utilised and the issues that Council must consider in making its decision when reviewing these service
charges.

Section 162 of the Local Government Act 1989 allows Council to declare a service rate or charge for specified

services.

Awaste service charge follows a user-pays approach, which is regressive in nature. Unlike a service rate, the
service charge approach has a clear correlation with the individual ratepayer’s consumption of services. In other
words, ratepayers pay the same charge for the same service received, independently of the property valuation.

Awaste service rate based on property valuation follows a wealth-tax approach in the same way general rates
are determined by multiplying the percentage (the rate in the dollar) by the value of the land. This approach is
progressive in nature.

Awaste service rate has no correlation with the individual ratepayer consumption of services.

2.1.1 Advantages of a Service Charge or Service Rate

If a Service Charge or Service Rate is levied for collection and disposal of refuse it is easily understood by the
residents as a user-pays system. There is also the ability to identify and apportion the costs of this service.

Service Rates or Service Charges are also able to be levied on only those properties that receive a service,
meaning that relief is provided to ratepayers who aren’t able to use a particular service.

Service Rates or Service Charges are also not subject to the Fair Go Rate Cap, other than in the year of their
introduction. This means that as costs of a service move outside of inflation, these costs can be effectively
quarantined from within the Rate Cap.

Service rates apply proportionally in the same way general rates are applied proportionally, in that properties
with lower values pay lower rates.

They are a form of taxation aimed at accumulating revenue so that broad range of facilities and services can be
provided for the benefit of the community.

2.1.2 Disadvantages of a Service Charge or Service Rate

A Service Charge is regressive in nature and would result in lower valued properties paying relatively higher
rates and charges in the year of introduction, compared to higher valued properties. The equity objective in
levying rates against property values is lostin a service charge as itis levied uniformly across all assessments.

A Service Rate will result in ratepayers using the same service paying different amounts dependent on their
property’s values. This service rate needs to be considered as a way to raise revenue to fund relevant waste
management services for the community as a whole and should not be considered as a fee for service.

The introduction of a service rate or charge in the first year is offset by a corresponding proportional reduction
in General Rates levied.
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2.1.3 Current use of Service Rates

Banyule levies Service Rates in two different forms, both relating to waste collection, processing and disposal.
The two Rates are:

* Public Waste Rate
+ Kerbside Waste Rate

Both rates are calculated on the Capital Improved Value of properties to which the rate applies.

2.1.4 Application of Service Rates

Banyule levies the Public Waste Rate to all properties within Banyule and is in place to fund the provision of
infrastructure and services to support:

e Street-sweeping

¢ Dumped rubbish collections

» Laneway clearance

e Litter and public realm refuse collection and disposal
e Park litter collection and disposal

Banyule levies the Kerbside Waste Rate on properties that are used wholly or partly for residential purposes that
are able to receive a standard kerbside waste collection. The Kerbside Waste Rate is not levied on properties
that do not receive a kerbside waste service due to conditions imposed under the Planning and Environment Act
1987, through locational constraints or other factors that make kerbside waste collection impractical.

The Kerbside Waste Rate is levied each year and is subject to addition or removal via a supplementary
adjustment process on a monthly basis from July through to May the following year. Adjustments are not
performed in June as these impact Council's ability to transparently budget for waste-related income and
expenses.

2.1.5 Current use of Service Charges

A service charge for non-standard refuse collection (e.g. larger bins) from rateable properties is charged in
addition to the Kerbside Waste Rate. These charges are declared in Council’'s Schedule of Fees and Charges each
year and are designed to recoup the additional costs of disposing of additional waste and providing a non-
standard waste service. These Service Charges are only levied on ratepayers who have elected to have a non-
standard waste service.

A kerbside waste service charge is also levied on properties deemed non-rateable under section 154 of the Local
Government Act 1989 where a kerbside waste service is provided. An additional service charge for non-standard
refuse collection (e.g. larger bins) is charged in addition to the Kerbside Waste Rate where ratepayers have
elected to have a non-standard waste service.

2.1.6 Monitoring of General Rates, Service Rates and Service Charges

All rates, fees and charges are declared as part of Council’s budgeting process. The Essential Services
Commission monitors, analyses and determines any application from councils for a variation of the Fair Go Rate
Cap. While Services Rates and Services Charges sit outside the Cap, the Commission requires councils to supply
information relating to Services Rates and Services Charges and reports on any significant breaches of the
income generated from Services Rates and Services Charges exceeding costs of supplying the relevant service.
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2.8.5 Aged Services Solar Scheme

This scheme is declared for the purposes of assisting older ratepayers to purchase roof-top solar panels. The
Aged Services Solar Program runs for 10 years however there is no financing surcharge applied.

These schemes do not form part of the budget process.

2.9 Rebates and Concessions

The purpose of this section is to outline the rebates and concessions that could be utilised and the issues that
Council must consider in making its decision when reviewing these rebates and concessions.

2.9.1 Introduction

Under the Local Government Act 1989, Council has the power to grant a rebate or concession in relation to any
rate or charge to assist ‘proper’ development and the preservation of buildings or places of historical,
environmental, architectural or scientific importance within the municipality.

While the original intent of the term ‘proper’ development has a land use perspective, Councils have been

known to use the provision to assist economic development. Rebates and concessions should be used with
respect to individual properties within a property class. The legislation intended that differential rates be used to
achieve an outcome for a class of properties.

The granting of rebates and concessions results in a higher rating effort being applied to other properties to
raise the same level of rate revenue.

2.10 Pensioner Rebate

2.10.1 State Government Pensioner Rebate
Pensioners may qualify for a maximum 50% State Government rate rebate (to a gazetted maximum) for the

home in which they are living. A rebate will apply for the Fire Services Property Levy. To be eligible, a ratepayer
must hold one of the following concession cards:

¢ Pensioner Concession Card from Centrelink or Veterans' Affairs
¢ Gold Card from Department of Veterans Affairs specifying War Widow (WW) or Totally and Permanently
Incapacitated (TPI).

Other than administrative costs this State Government Rebate scheme is cost neutral to Council as this is fully
funded by the State Government.

2.10.2 Council Pensioner Rebate
Council has the option of introducing a pensioner rebate to complement the existing State Government rebate.
A Council Pensioner rate rebate redistributes the rate effort with other ratepayers bearing the cost by way of

higher rates and charges. The rate effort for non-pensioners is likely to be greater as the number of pensioners
increases.

Council does not grant any further rebates or concessions than those afforded by the State Government
Pensioner Rebate scheme.
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2.11 Properties Exempt from Rates

The purpose of this section is to raise awareness of non-rateable properties.

2111 Introduction

The Local Government Act 1989 provides for properties where the use is charitable, to be non-rateable.

Legal precedent has determined that charitable uses include those providing health services, education, religion
and services to the needy.

Application for exemption from rating may be made at any time during the financial year and will be assessed
based on the usage of the property. Council does not generally allow for any retrospective claims.

2.11.2 Department of Families, Faimess and Housing (formerly Department of Health and Human
Services)

In relation to the Department of Families, Fairness and Housing (DFFH) owned housing, properties are rated if
occupied. Properties are not rated if unoccupied or not habitable.

There are a number of organisations providing housing for people with low-income, on a voluntary and not for
profit basis. The provisions of The Act preclude such residential housing from being non-rateable, even though
their use may be regarded as charitable, in the everyday sense of the word.

The Local Government Act 1989 allows Council to grant a rebate or concession in relation to any rate or charge, to
support the provision of affordable housing, to a registered agency.

Council does not provide a rate rebate to support the provision of affordable housing by registered agencies.
Assistance for low income households is provided through the State Government pensioner rebate.

A pre-existing agreement is in place for the provision of a 50% rate rebate in relation to certain DFFH elderly
persons units. This agreement has no sunset clause subject to the units remaining as housing for the elderly.
This agreement is not open to other parties or to other properties.

2.12 Collections

The purpose of this section is to outline the rate payment options and processes that are in place in relation to
payment of rates. It also includes the support provided to ratepayers facing hardship. Council must consider
fairness, compassion, confidentiality and compliance with statutory requirements when reviewing these
arrangements.

2.12.1 Liability to Pay Rates

The owner of the land is liable to pay the rates and charges on that land. In certain cases, the occupier,
mortgagee or licensee holder is liable to pay the rates.

The Local Government Act 1989 declares the unpaid rate or charge, interest and costs to be the first charge upon
the land, when the land is sold; ensuring Council receives the outstanding monies prior to the discharge of any
mortgage and or charges on the land.

2.12.1 Payment Dates for Rates

Council, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 must allow for the payment of rates by four
instalments per annum. The mandatory instalment payments are required at the end of September, November,
February and May each year in accordance with the Gazette dates. Council may allow a person to pay a rate or
charge in a single lump sum payment.

Banyule City Council offers payment by instalments only.
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2.12.2 Payment Methods

Council offers a range of payment options including

* Weekly Direct Debit

s Fortnightly Direct Debit

* Monthly Direct Debit

« Direct Debit (Instalment)

« BPay

e BPayView

¢ Council's website for MasterCard and Visa payments

e Australia Post billpay (phone & internet)

+  Mail

« over the counter services at Council Service Centres or Australia Post agencies.

As an incentive to encourage payments made by weekly, fortnightly or monthly Direct Debit, interest will not be
charged on rates and charges paid by weekly, fortnightly or monthly direct debit until 30 June each financial
year.

2.12.3 Incentives for Prompt Payment

Section 168 of the Local Government Act 1989 provides that incentives may be offered by Council for payment of
rates and charges before the due dates.

No incentives are offered by Council for the payment of rates and charges before the dates.

2.12.4 Late Payment of Rates

Council has determined that the application of penalty interest will be applied on the sixth business day from
the gazette due date. The grace period was adopted by Council July 2014 and will remain in place unless revoked
and this will be declared as part of the annual Declaration of Rates and Charges.

Interest penalties will be in accordance with Section 172 (2) of the Local Government Act 1989, which allows
interest to be imposed on unpaid rates at the rate fixed under Section 2 of the Penalty Interest Rates Act 1983.

Council cannot apply an alternative rate but has the power to exempt any person from paying the whole or part
of any interest amount generally or specifically payable.

2.12.5 Debt Recovery - Collection of Overdue Rates

Council makes every effort to contact ratepayers at their correct address, but it is the ratepayers’ responsibility
to properly advise Council of their contact details. Section 122 of the Local Government Act 2020 requires the
purchaser of property, or their agents to notify Council by way of notices of acquisition.

If an account becomes overdue, Council has established procedures and guidelines for the collection of the
debt. This creates a consistent approach to debt collection and ensures that all ratepayers are treated equally
and fairly.

The purpose of the Collection guidelines is to act as a genuine deterrent to ratepayers who might otherwise fail
to pay rates on time, to allow Council to recover the administrative cost of following up unpaid rates and to
recover any interest cost the Council may incur due to lost investment opportunities. The principle in providing
for such penalty is that ratepayers who pay within the required timeframe should not have to subsidise or bear
any cost of ratepayers who defaultin payment. Details of Council's collection framework is contained in Council's
Rates Collection Policy.
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2.15.6 Waiver/Deferment of Interest, Rates and Charges under Financial Hardship

Council acknowledges that some ratepayers will have trouble from time to time in meeting rate payments due
to any number of reasons. Council further understands that relief measures have a cost to Council which must
be borne by other ratepayers in either the short or long term.

Waivers are not generally granted. However, in cases such as those associated with severe hardship, Council
may grant waivers through the Hardship Assistance Policy, which is updated annually, taking in to account the
economic conditions at the time and other assistance measures in place across state and commonwealth
government agencies.

Council recognises there are cases of genuine financial hardship requiring respect and compassion in special
circumstances. In accordance with the Local Government Act 1989, Council has established a Rates Hardship
Assistance Policy which includes provisions for the waiver of rates, interest or deferment of rates and charges;

2.12.1 Special Circumstances Waiver

Council acknowledges that ratepayers will experience circumstances where they may fail to make payment of
their instalment and that this failure to pay on time is a departure from their usual pattern. In these
circumstances, upon receipt of a written request from the ratepayer Council may waive interest or associated
charges as a "one-off” special circumstance’s waiver.

2.13 Fire Services Property Levy

The Victorian Government introduced a property-based levy to fund the Metropolitan Fire Brigade (MFB) and the
Country Fire Authority (CFA) from 1 July 2013.

The Fire Services Property Levy replaced the insurance-based funding model as recommended by the Victorian
Bushfires Royal Commission.
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population (i.e. on a per capita basis), and
+ An identified local road component, which is distributed between the states and territories according
to fixed historical shares.

Both components of the grant are untied in the hands of local government, allowing councils to spend the
grants according to local priorities. Council applies the local roads component to road rehabilitation projects in
its Capital Works Program and utilises the general-purpose component to fund Council operations and Capital
works.

In addition to financial assistance grants, each year Council receives several other grants from the State &
Federal Government. Grants received may be to help fund capital works and short-term initiative projects or to
help fund the provision of regular Council services. These grants are split into two categories based on whether
they are of a recurrent (received each year) or non-recurrent (once-off) nature.

The volume of non-recurrent grants fluctuates from year to year and typically represent grants received towards
the funding of capital projects or small ad-hoc initiatives. Government departments generally designate a total
pool of funding available and eligibility criteria to access the funding. Council is responsible for identifying
funding that it may be eligible for and then making appropriate applications.

Recurrent grants are relatively consistent from year to year and are typically granted to Council to help fund the
provision of specific services (Home Care, Child Care, Maternal & Child Health, School Crossings, etc.). The grants
may designate specific obligations tied to the funding such as the requirement for Council to delivering a
minimum amount of service levels. If these obligations are not fully met, a portion of the funding may be
forfeited and need to be returned.

Council has no control over the available funding put forward by State and Federal Government. However,
Council is able to exercise an element of control over grant funding by; ensuring that applications are made for
all applicable grant funding pools, all funding obligations are met and the prioritization of capital works takes
into account each proiects eligibilitv for erant fundine.
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application of the user pays principle - thatis, so far as is possible, the cost of providing a direct service will be
offset by the fees charged.

A schedule of the current user fees and charges is presented for public consultation and feedback as part of
Council's annual budget process.

4.1 Cost recovery

Setting fees and charges is often determined by a notion that the fee charged for a service should correspond
with the cost of providing the service - that is the costs borne by Council in providing the service are fully
recovered by the fees & charges. However this notion is balanced with Council’s wish for some essential services
to be accessible by the most disadvantaged members of our Community as well as the commercial reality, that
our fees need to be consistent with other providers in the market to remain competitive, as well as the supply
and demand realities that if the costs are set too high, the usage of the service will drop, reducing our overall
income.

The full cost of delivering a service or providing a facility includes both:

¢ Direct Costs - those costs that can be readily and unequivocally attributed to the delivery of a service
or activity because they are incurred exclusively for that particular product/activity.

¢ Indirect Costs (often referred to as overheads) - those costs that are not directly attributable to a single
activity but support a range of activities across Council (e.g. Information Technology costs).

4.1.1 Direct Costs

In line with sounds financial management principles Council's systems are set up to allocate direct costs straight
to the business unit providing the service. These costs include:

1. Labour - the wages and salaries of all staff directly working on that service.

2. Materials and supplies - supplies used in providing the service. This may include utilities, contractor
costs and car operating expenses.

3. Administrative expenses - the office support for a service. Typically, an operational unit provides a
number of services, so the administrative costs of that unit will need to be allocated across the different
services.

4. Equipment used in providing the service - this may include the purchase of equipment, plant hire,
leasing of equipment, etc.

These costs include staff on-costs, such as allowing for annual leave, sick leave, workers’ compensation
payments and long service leave.

4.1.2 Indirect Costs (Overheads)

Council has a range of "back office” operations that are not directly tied to any service delivery (e.g. IT, Customer
Service and HR). Nonetheless, these involve real costs that are incurred in supporting the delivery of Council's

services.

Council allocates indirect costs to the services it provides using a pro-rata approach. That is to say, Council
allocates indirect costs on a proportionate basis by using measures that are easily available, such as staff
involved in the activity as a percentage of total staff, total number of computers or the service unit's share of
total office floor space.

There are alternative ways to allocate indirect costs such as using Activity based costing, however this process
can be very labour intensive and costly, while a pro rata approach delivers similar results with less effort.
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4.2 Fee setting

The responsibility for setting of fees & charges resides with the managerial unit responsible for delivering the
service. The fee setting is done as part of the budget process, where the impact of changing fees can be seen
against the unit’s bottom line.

When setting the fees & charges for the new year, the following questions must be asked.

¢ Do any external constraints apply? Possibilities include:
o Other levels of Government setting a statutory price for that service, or
o Does Council need to take into account competitive neutrality adjustments
+«  Would setting a price based on recovering the full cost of the service be competitive with other supplies
(nearby councils and/or private competitors)?
¢ How will a change in price impact volume of usage of that service?
¢ Does Council have a strategy to either:
o Subsidise the cost of this service (setting prices below full costs)?
o Use the service as a taxation mechanism (setting prices above the full cost level)?

4.3 Competitive Neutrality

Compared to the private sector, government departments have a number of competitive advantages and
disadvantages when providing services in a competitive market. Competitive benefits may arise due to Council’s
taxation status or ability to subsidise a service with rates. Conversely Council may be disadvantaged due to
increased red tape (additional reporting costs and legislation to comply with), limited flexibility in restructuring
or comparative employment awards between the private and public sectors.

If Council deems that in the provision of any of its significant business activities it has a significant competitive
advantage (or disadvantage) over the market due to its public sector ownership, then a competitive neutrality
assessment may be required to be undertaken.

To undertake this assessment, the following steps are recommended by the Victorian Government's Competitive
Neutrality Policy:

¢« Determine whether the operation is a "significant business activity” and whether Council has a net
competitive advantage compared to the private sector.

¢ Weigh up the expected benefits and costs of introducing competitive neutrality policy measures.

¢ Determine if the public interest is served by implementing competitive neutrality policy measures.

If this analysis shows that a significant business activity of Council does enjoy a net competitive benefit, Council
is expected to set prices that include competitive neutral adjustments.

However, under the policy, this is not required if:
The costs of applying competitive neutrality outweigh the benefits, or

Council conducts and documents a “public interest test”, which involves public consultation on costed options,
and identifies clear public policy objectives for providing the service at below competitive neutral prices.

Council will conduct a competitive neutrality assessment of it's services on a rolling basis. To date, no services
have been identified as being a significant business activity where Council has a significant net competitive
advantage over the private sector. As such no competitive neutrality adjustments have been required to be
implemented to increase user fees.

4.4 Fee & Charge Principles

Council has developed a range of principles to determine the level of fees and charges to be applied to each
service. Fees and charges will be reviewed on an annual basis in line with these principles:

e Feesarecharged in line with State and Federal government legislation or Local Laws.
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5. Waiving of Interest & Legal Costs
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INI5 poncy will d150 ensure wndL dll provisions ol we Locar GOVerrumernt Al 13689 dna Lol GOVerrimerit Al Luu
are adhered to and will further ensure that Council will not jeopardise the funding of its operations.

14  Method

All applications for assistance will need to be made in writing. Council prefers all applications to be made
electronically, through Council's website. Where this is not possible, scanned and emailed documents are
preferred. Applications and correspondence will be accepted via mail, however it is necessary to state that
this is the slowest form of communication

15 Timeliness

Generally, applications will be responded to within 21 days.

1.6 Confidentiality

Applications for financial hardship will be treated in accordance with Council's Privacy Policy.

Rates Financial Hardship Assistance Policy 2022/2023 | CD18261 4
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3.2 Conditions of Waiver Applications
1. All waivers granted will be applied in the 2022/2023 rate year.
2. Waivers granted will be allocated as one-off credits, in the following order:
a. Arrears rates and charges owing, if any
b. Currentrates and charges owing
3. Fire Services property Levy will not be waived.

Only one successful application per applicant can be made for waivers. For the purposes of this
policy, multiple owners who jointly own properties are considered one applicant.

5. Waivers will be capped at 25% of general rates, kerbside waste rate and public waste rate to a
maximum of $500 per year

6. Incomplete applications or applications not including all required documentation will not be
processed until the required information is submitted.

7. Tenants are not able to apply for waivers, unless they are life tenants of residential properties and
therefore responsible for payment of rates

8. Waivers of rates that result in a ratepayer having a credit balance will not generally be eligible for a
refund of the amountin credit.

9. Applications are subject to audit by Council or Council's appointed auditors. Failure to supply
documentation when requested may result in the waiver being withdrawn and penalty interest
charged.

10. Any decision by Council to not grant a waiver will be communicated in writing. Unsuccessful
applicants will be able to request a review by a senior officer, not responsible for the assessment of
the original application.

11. Applicants not able to make a written application due to disability, age, language or lack of access to
technology can make an application using the assistance of a friend, relative, support person or

conncil affirer wha will he ahle tn siithmit a written annlicatinn an their hehalf
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104 Section 181 of the Local Government Act 1989

Council may sell any rateable land thatis more than 3 years overdue for overdue rates or charges, in
accordance with the legislation.

105 Related Legislation

Charter for Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006
Cultural and Recreational Lands Act 1963

Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012

Local Government Act 1989

Local Government Act 2020

Penalty Interest Rates Act 1983

Privacy & Data Protection Act 2014

State Concessions Act 2004

106 Related Policies

13825 Information Security Policy

14678 Records Information management Policy
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the Victorian Government is implementing changes to household recycling and councils will need to
provide a waste service for four bins, including a new bin for glass. While this promotes better recycling
and the reuse of products, providing four separate waste services increases Council costs well above
what we can recover through rates. This is compounded by the Victorian Government's increase to the
landfill levy, which will leave Council with an estimated shortfall of $9 million over 10 years. These rising

costs have been absorbed by local governments over many years and have now become

unsustainable, particularly since councils have been subject to rate caps.

From 1 July 2022, we are proposing to separate out the cost of providing waste and recycling services

into two new waste rates. These will appear as individual items on rates notices. To offset the

introduction of waste rates, the overall general rates collected across the municipality will be reduced.
Individual ratepayers will be impacted differently depending on what waste services they receive. For
the average ratepayer, this represents an extra $0.50 per week for 2022/2023. While this has been a

difficult decision, without action we would need to look at other ways to address this significant
financial shortfall, such as unwanted cuts to essential community services or infrastructure.

Improving facilities and infrastructure

For 2022/2023, we have allocated $61.55 million to deliver a substantial capital works program. This will
improve hundreds of community facilities and infrastructure, including:

Rosanna Library and precinct upgrade $9.05 million (over 2 years)
Olympic Park Masterplan $5.30 million

Watsonia Town Square $5.23 million

Footpath replacement program $3.00 million

East Ivanhoe Preschool upgrade $2.50 million

Local roads rehabilitation works $1.95 million

Proposed Budget | 2022 - 2026
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Planning for the future

The Budget is not developed in isolation and its overall direction aligns with our new Community Vision
2041 and Council Plan 2021-2025. By integrating our planning and financial resourcing through the
Revenue and Rating Plan, Financial Plan, and Asset Plan, we set strategic objectives focussed on our
community’s needs for today with an eye on the future.

During extensive community consultation to develop our Community Vision 2041, we heard about the
importance of providing services and community facilities that are accessible and encourage
connection. This has become a key focus when we upgrade facilities, such as Rosanna Library and
Olympic Park. We also know we play an important role in fostering a thriving local economy. And thatis
why we continue to create jobs as part of our Inclusive Employment and Social Enterprise programs
and are encouraging other employers to partner with us.

Today, people want more convenience and online services. To accommodate this, we have allocated
$2.50 million for our ongoing digital transformation that continues to improve the way we service the
community. Equally important is lowering carbon emissions and taking action on climate change. We
continue to invest in initiatives that help the organisation and the broader community take positive
steps to net zero emissions. Programs that deliver energy-efficient buildings, renewable energy, electric
vehicles to our fleet, and a circular economy remain key priorities.

As our city grows and our lifestyles and needs change, there is even more importance on ensuring
Banyule is a well-planned, sustainable and liveable place that caters for all. As we create better places
and spaces, we want to protect our local character and environment. We also need to seize the
opportunities to pool resources and work together to enhance Banyule. Our continued advocacy has
secured $28.47 million of funding support from other levels of government. This, and other project
partnerships with external agencies, ensures our budget delivers more for our community.

Your feedback counts

Thank-you to everyone who took the time to contribute to and provide their feedback on this Proposed
Budget 2022-2026. We encourage you to take in the breadth of projects, programs and initiatives
outlined within this proposed Budget 2022-2026. While some of these are small and localised, others
span across the municipality and beyond. Either way, they all play a part in transforming the lives of all
who call Banyule home. We will continue to seek your feedback on future Budgets and our other key
strategies throughout the year.

Thank you.

Mayor Cr Elizabeth Nealy
CEO Allison Beckwith
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+ Balancing meeting the onNgoing core service needs of our cCOMMUNIty, expectations and
quality of delivery with the ongoing achievement of long-term financial sustainability.

* Delivering of a revenue and rating plan based on stability, equity, efficiency and transparency.

o Delivering of a debt management strategic plan to ensure decisions and opportunities can be
accommodated within a context of responsible, sustainable financial management.

COvID-19

This budget is a recovery budget for Council. The organisation has been slow to recover from the
financial impacts of COVID-19 and it will take a few years to reach our operable levels. Yet despite
this setback we continue to be a financially sustainable Council in the long-term.

Council has always put the needs of the community first and has done everything in its control to
maintain key services and infrastructure delivery to the community and we were well positioned to
obtain the much needed funding support from State and Federal Governments through this recovery
phase.

Rates and charges contribute funds to address ageing infrastructure, improve the amenity and
quality of community assets and deliver vital services across the breadth of the City. Our services
income, as noted above, has not yet fully recovered in many core areas such as our recreation and
leisure centres, the transfer station, and transport engineering. Where feasible operational
expenditure has been directly offset across all council service to accommodate for the ongoing
impacts of COVID-19.
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Banyule is a diverse municipality. Residents come from over 140 countries and around 120 different
languages are spoken at home. Skilled migrants comprise the bulk of recent migration in Banyule,
followed by those who settled through family reunion. Humanitarian arrivals represent the smallest
proportion of migrant intake.

In the 2016 Census, 706 residents identified as First Nations people, 221 couples reported living in a
same-sex relationship and 5% of residents indicated a need for assistance due to disability.

Changing Demographics

As a result of the City's demographic profile there are several budget implications in the short and
long term. Council continues to see a shiftin the population make-up of this area to emerging
migrant groups and growing established ethnic communities. Cultural and linguistic diversity means
that Council needs to use a variety of media in languages other than English for mass communication
with residents and use interpreting services for interpersonal communication with residents.

The City is substantially developed and while it is experiencing a small increase in property numbers,
these mainly arise from higher density developments. Council continues to support appropriate
increases in development density around its activity centres which will have ongoing implications for
many service areas and infrastructure provision. Council's structure planning processes for these
precincts is well established. Council has implemented an open space contribution scheme and an
infrastructure development contribution plan.

Local Economic Outlook

In the year ending June 2021, there were 48,414 jobs in Banyule. The largest employer in the
municipality is the Health Care and Social Assistance industry, making up 36% of all employment,
followed by Education and Training (10%), Retail Trade (9%) and Construction (8%). A considerable
proportion of the people who work in Banyule also live in the area (36%).

The outlook for the Australian economy remains positive despite January's Omicron wave influencing
a'shadow lockdown’. Gross Domestic Product (GDP) rose 3.4% in the December 2021 quarter as
NSW, Victoria and the ACT came out of extended lockdowns in October 2021. Household spending
rose 6.3% in this quarter exceeding pre-pandemic levels for the first time as lockdown restrictions
eased. In line with this recovery in activity, the labour market has also performed better than
expected.

Employment grew strongly over the latter part of 2020, and the national unemployment rate declined
to 5.1 % in December 2021. The unemployment rate in Banyule dropped to 3.7% in December 2021.

The Australian Dollar continues to perform strongly boosted by global confidence as vaccine coverage
widens and the value of Australian export commodities increase buoyed by Russia-Ukraine tensions.

Recently, Reserve Bank of Australia (RBA) hikes official interest rate by 50 basis points to 0.85% to
curb inflation.

While the economic outlook is positive, sourcing labour, supply change disruptions and material
shortages continue to be the biggest challenges. Rising staffing costs, interest rate rises in 2022 and
the impact of geopolitical tensions have added new challenges to businesses already facing an uphill
battle. Business and consumer confidence will drive the local economy and the return of
international visitors and visa holders will further it's growth, particularly in the tourism, education,
hospitality and agricultural sectors.

Data sources:
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opportunities for communities to be engaged.

To help us to deliver on our focus areas and important initiatives Council works in partnership with
the community; engage with our community to ensure they are well informed and represented and
meaningfully involved in decision making; encourage community participation and inclusion to
provide opportunities for all and advocate for our community to improve services, infrastructure and
social outcomes.

Council will continue to implement strategies and actions that address concerns of our community,
organisation and management and measure success through utilising key financial sustainable
ratios. These ratios assist to monitor and highlight issues for appropriate discussion and decision
making throughout the planning process.

Operations

Each year the Minister for Local Government will set the rate cap that will specify the maximum
increase in Councils’ rates for the forthcoming financial year. The cap for 2022/2023 has been set at
1.75%. In applying the rate cap Council will raise $111.88 million in rates in 2022/2023 ($1,939.71
capped average rate). in addition to the general rate, two waste service rates will be declared for the
collection and disposal of waste for the first time in 2022/2023. The revenue generated by these
waste service rates will be revenue neutral. i.e. the total general rate revenue will reduce in
proportion to the increase in the total waste rates(s) revenue in year 1.

Council generates income from other sources such as grants, statutory and user fees and charges to
help supportthe essential services provided by Council and maintain the $1.72 billion of Council
infrastructure.
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Council will generate a $15.11 million surplus in the Draft Budget for 2022/2023. The underlying
result is a deficit of $4.10 million (which measures Council ability to generate surplus in the ordinary
course of business, excluding non-recurrent capital grants and capital contributions). It is anticipated
to return to an underlying surplus position from the 2025/2026 financial year. This slow recovery is
attributed to commercial activities such as leisure centres taking a few year to return to pre-COVID-19
levels whilst expenses have continued to rise each year, significant increase in major initiatives over
the 4 years of greater than $25 million; and the need to increase depreciation to supportand
maintain the replacement of Councils infrastructure each year which is now $1.72 billion. The
challenge that Council now have is to carefully manage the growing Community expectations to
ensure that council does not commit more resources than those that are currently available.

That said, Council is committed to deliver on its budget 2022-2026 and has invested in skilled and
dedicated resources to enable Council to deliver on its strategic objectives and key directions and the
capital program as outlined in the draft budget 2022-2026.

Human resources represent $75.27million in the draft budget for 2022/2023 (694.87 equivalent full
time (EFT) staff numbers).

Council continues to provide levels of service to meet community expectations and to deliver
continuous improvement from within the operational budget, further aided with the investmentin
the maintenance and renewal of existing systems and new systems. To date operational efficiencies
have been as a result of process change, automation, service review, supplier contracts, new business
generation and workforce restructures.

Fees and Charges

Counclil in its determination of user fee increases has taken into consideration the needs and
accessibility of the community; demand for the service, pricing and cost to sustain a viable service.
Were feasible Council aims to encourage greater participation across the municipality and maintain
sustainable community affordability. Some fees have increased greater than CPI, mainly commercial
fees to balance cost recovery, competitive pressures and council’s financial sustainability

objectives. E.g. waste recovery services due to increases in land fill levy costs.

Capital Works & Initiatives

Council will continue to draw down on its cash reserves to fund the capital works budgetin
2022/2023.

Under the rate capping environment Council has continued to invest generously in its capital works
program with $61.55 million (including $10.61 million of carried forward projects from 2021/2022)
and $8.97 million in initiatives in 2022/2023.

To continue to support sustainable development on major capital and initiative projects, Council will
also seek to maximise external funding opportunities, such as applying for government grants and
draw on cash reserves accumulated over the years. In 2022/2023 Council is projecting to receive
$16.05 million in Government grants to support the capital works and initiatives programs.

e  Of the total capital works budget greater than 91% will be invested into asset renewal and
upgrade. This percentages includes carried over projects from 2021/2022).

e Thereis significant investment into our parks, gardens, playgrounds and shared paths;
upgrade to sporting grounds, facilities and pavilions; whilst continuing to invest in the
maintaining of our roads, bridges and drainage.
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Investment in Roads, Streets and bridges is $16.26 million; Parks and Gardens $12.15 million and
Buildings $27.97 million.

Council will have implemented a high-performance Food Organics Garden Organics waste service to
reflect the changes required to meet sector challenges and Council, State and Federal Government
objectives. This service is planned to divert waste from landfill and support our current waste
strategy. You will also be able to see separate waste rates on your annual rates notice. These rates
will be separate from your general rates and you should also see a reduction in your general rate as
the cost allocation across Council is for 2022/2023 income neutral.

Council will continue to focus on improving existing IT infrastructure and applications with a goal of
removing aged solutions and utilising existing unused functionality in our current applications. We
want our community, customers and staff to be empowered and enriched by digital capabilities that
enable positive interactions and service delivery outcomes. Council has an IT and Digital
Transformation Strategy to move Council to become a more customer centric organisation. The first
major projects focus on improving the customer experience and include:

e Contact Centre Platform - the project will design and implement a new cloud-based contact
centre platform.

e Customer Experience Platform - the project will implement a new software solution that will
provide customers with self-service options, allow customers to interact with Council via their
preferred channel

e Enterprise Integration Software - this project will implement enterprise integration software
that connects our systems and processes to make integration less complex and faster.

e Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) - reviewing Council’s core operational and back office
systems to identify the best market solution for replacement

Cash Reserves and Cash Balance

Council in 2021/2022 adopted an investment strategy and investment policy which will provide
investment and development opportunities to ensure the best possible return on investments for our
community, matched with investment policy limits and the debt management strategic plan
principles in place. The investment strategy will be fully implemented during the 2022/2023 financial
year.

The planned cash from operating activities is $37.50 million ($141.84 million over the 4-years)

Council will ensure outgoings are actively assessed alongside rates and own source revenue to
effectively support Councils financing obligations and capital investment.

Debt Management

Council is seeking to obtain additional funds in 2022/2023 as part of the Community Infrastructure
Loan Scheme run be the Victorian Government of $6.30 million. This Loan scheme provides local
governments access to very low interest, subsidised loans to help fund infrastructure projects. This
funding has been included to support the Capital Works Program, specifically allocated to the
Rosanna Library and Precinct upgrade. Borrowings will peak in 2022/2023 to $25.89 million and
Council will continue to pay down existing debt while rate revenue will continue to rise in line with the
rate cap.
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External Influences
The four years represented within the Budget are 2022/2023 through to 2025/2026. In preparing the

draft budget 2022-2026, a number of external influences have been taken into consideration. These

are outlined below:

e Population Growth - include current population, expected population to grow to 165,256 by
2041.

¢ Rate Capping - The Victorian State Government continues with a cap on rate increases. The cap
for 2022/2023 has been set at 1.75%.

e Supplementary Rates - Supplementary rates are additional rates received after the budget is
adopted each year, for the part of the year when a property value increases in value (e.g. due
to improvements made or change in land class), or new residents become assessable.
Importantly, supplementary rates recognise that new residents require services on the day they
move into the municipality and Council is committed to providing these. Supplementary rates
income is based on historical and forecast data and is set at anticipated levels.

e Financial Assistance Grants - The largest source of government funding to Council is through
the annual Victorian Grants Commission allocation. The overall state allocation is determined
by the Federal Financial Assistance Grant, for support the regional councils, the increase of
General Purpose grant funding is limited to the minimum increase assessible to Council.

e Capital Grant Funding - Capital grant opportunities arise continually in 2022/2023.

e Enterprise Agreement (EA) - Remaining competitive within the labour market to recruit the
skilled specialists has been challenging. Council also relies heavily on contractor and agency in
delivering operational, capital works and major initiative projects.

e Superannuation - Council has an ongoing obligation to fund any investment shortfalls in the
Defined Benefits Scheme. The last call on Local Governmentwas in the 2012/2013 financial year
where Council was required to pay $9.12 million to top up its share of the Defined Benefits
Scheme. The amount and timing of any liability is dependent on the global investment market.
At present the actuarial ratios are at a level that additional calls from Local Government are not
expected in the next 12 months.

e The super guarantee rate has increased to 10.00% from 1 July 2021, and then increase by 0.50%
increments each year until it reaches 12.00% by 1 July 2025.

s (Cost shifting - Local Government provides a service to the community on behalf of the State
and Commonwealth Government Over time, the funds received by Local Governments’ does
not increase in line with real cost increases, such as school crossing or library services, resulting
in a further reliance on rate revenue to meet service delivery expectations.

e The Local Government Act 2020 requires Council’s to address climate change in its Council Plan
asitis one of the key overarching governance principles. Every council must:

o promote the economic, social and enviranmental sustainability of the area, including
mitigation and planning for climate change risks

o give priority to achieving the best outcomes for your community, including future
generations.

Councils have a duty of care in the context of climate change adaptation that is recognised in law. The
Victorian Government outlines how failure to act may leave your council open to claims of negligence.

Acting on climate change is no longer optional.

In addition, climate change is a risk to council but tackling climate change can have economic as well
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¢ Adjusted Underlying Result - This measures Council ability to generate surplus in the ordinary
course of business—excluding non-recurrent capital grants, non-monetary asset contributions,
and other contributions to fund capital expenditure from net result. In 2022/2023 underlying
resultis budgeted to be $4.10 million in deficit as result of the changing of accounting standard
regarding capitalisation of intangible asset. It is anticipated not to return to surplus position
until the 2026/2027 financial year due to this change.

¢ Cash - Council has allocated a yearly optimal closing cash of $80 million to support long-term
sustainability and to provide a strong 2:1 liquidity position (cash / current liabilities) for viability
and solvency. It should also be noted that the cash balance may be needed in the future to
accommodate the possibility of a Superannuation liability call for the defined benefit members.
A superannuation call has not been factored into this proposed budget.

e Working Capital - This is a measure ofthe ability to pay existing liabilities in the next 12 months.
A ratio of one or more means that there are more cash and liquid assets than short-term
liabilities. Over the next four years, Banyule's Working Capital ratio is in excess of 2:1, which
means Banyule has no immediate issues with repaying short-term liabilities as they fall due.

¢ Service Planning - In this proposed four-year budget, several strategies have been considered
to meet the service needs of the community as well as remain financially sustainable. As a
result, the increase in operational expenditure has been set to be CP1-0.25%, after including the
below strategies.

o Service reviews - Council continues to conduct service reviews to ensure operations
meet quality, cost and service standards in line with community expectations.
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o Continuous improvement - Council develops and implements a Continuous
Improvement program to deliver operational efficiency.

o Digital Transformation - Council maintains its capital works investment in the
maintenance and renewal of existing systems and infrastructure and provides
additional funding for new systems to build customer capability and operational
efficiency.

o Collaborative procurement - Council continues to actively participate in collaborative
opportunities with the Northern Region councils in an effort to maximise procurement
and purchasing power.

¢ Service divestment - in March 2019, Council decided to transition out of Commonwealth Home
Support Services (i.e. Domestic Assistance, Personal Care and Respite) from 1 July 2019, where
the market is well developed, with quality providers readily available and initiates a transition
plan. Council continues being a provider of Commonwealth funded Social Programs (i.e. Social
Support Groups, Carers Support & Social Support Individual), Property Maintenance and
Delivered Meals programs subject to further review work and the trial of options to optimise
the sustainability of the service models in a competitive market model. Council is reassessing
the financial benefit under the current economic environment and will provide an update of
the results and the plan for new proposed services to benefit the community.
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~ CPI+ includes banding increments of staff.
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In accordance with the Local Government Act 2020, Banyule City Council is engaging with the community,
driven by principles of deliberative engagement, to inform the development of the Banyule Community
Vision 2041, Council Plan 2021-2025, Financial Plan 2021-2031, Budget and Revenue and Rating Plan.

The aim of the project is to develop an innovative, aspirational and co-designed Community Vision that
guides Council's work in enhancing the municipality of Banyule over the next 20 years. Through a robust

engagement program Council and community will work together to inform the:

e Community Vision that captures how the community want Banyule to be in 2041
e Council Plan that sets out how Council is working toward that vision every 4 years

e Long term Financial Plan that will guide how Council will remain financially sustainable while
supporting the Community Vision and the Council Plan.

¢ The Budget and the Revenue and Rating Plan that defines how revenue is generated through
various sources.

Engagement Approach

The engagement approach was developed in collaboration with community and Banyule's elected
representatives and in alignment with Local Government Victoria Guidance material. Throughout the
engagement period, Council sought to inform as many people as possible about the project and to
encourage participation. Communications material included posters, postcards, emails, video, social

media and factsheets. Council informed the community about the project and promoted engagement
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opportunities, encouraging people to visit the Shaping Banyule website for more information about
the project.

Council provided many ways for people to participate and contribute including Shaping Banyule,
workshops, phone and hardcopy surveys and submissions online and postal submissions. Over 4,100
people engaged with the project information and resources provided on Shaping Banyule.

Approximately 1,329 individuals actively participated in engagement activities.

Consultation on the Proposed Budget 2022-2026 was undertaken from 12 Aprilto 3 May 2022 as a part

of integrated approach to engage with the Community on key planning documents:

¢ Council Plan 2021-2025 - Year 2 Annual Action Plan 2022/2023
e Budget 2022-26
e Asset Plan 2022-32
¢ Financial Plan 2022-32
e Revenue and Rating Plan 2022-26
Thirty community members provided feedback on the Budget 2022-2026 during in-person and online

workshops, and twenty-nine community members via email and our online engagement platform,

Shaping Banyule.
Budget and Financial Plan

The budget is a short-term plan which specifies the resources required to fund a council's services and
initiatives over the next 12 months and subsequent 3 financial years and should be consistent with the

first four years of the Financial Plan.

The Financial Plan is a plan of the financial and non-financial resources for at least the next ten years
required to achieve the Council Plan and other strategic plans of Council. The Financial Plan defines the
broad fiscal boundaries for the Council Plan, Asset Plan, other subordinate policies and strategies and

budgets processes.
Our Rating Context

Our Revenue and Rating Plan is used to ensure that the Local Government Act’s rating objectives of
‘equity and efficiency’ are achieved. Itis important that Banyule City Council has a Revenue and Rating
Planin place that is transparent to the community and reviewed annually as part of the budget process.

The rating parameters set for the strategic outlook period through to 2026 are indicated currently
based on a 1.75% rate increase for 2022/2023.

The indicative rates are predicated on a rate capping environment and not indicative of maintaining all
Council's services at their current level. Each year the Minister for Local Government will set the rate
cap and will specify the maximum increase in Council's rates for the forthcoming financial year. The

rate cap is consistent with the latest forecasted CPI figures.

Banyule will continue to revisit the principles outlined in the Revenue and Rating Plan each year when
further information is received from the State Government on the rate cap and the economy. This will

be then matched with the community’s desire to maintain current service levels and capital investment.
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For 2022/2023 Council will introduce a separation of waste collection service fees from general rates
and introduce a Food Organics and Garden Organic waste collection service. To support the State
Governments waste reform (to reduce waste and increase recycling) Council will separate all waste and
recycling collection fees from general rates and create a new service rate for 1) Kerbside waste services
and for 2) Public waste services. The food organics and garden organic services fees will be included

in the new Kerbside waste service rate.

The cost for these services will be removed from general rates, reducing the total general rates

collected.

Land is a finite resource in Banyule. Our Council is committed to ensuring that the effective use of land
resources benefits the whole community, as each land holding contributes to the shared infrastructure
and services of Council. As such, Council differentially rates its vacant commercial, industrial and
residential land to ensure an inequity in the shared contribution to infrastructure is not created through

the underdevelopment of vacant land.

We also strive to encourage the best use development of land. Banyule values appropriate commercial
and industrial development. However, we also acknowledge an increased impact on our shared
infrastructure by these developments. We choose to differentially rate these properties to ensure an

equitable outcome to infrastructure costs across our community.

We understand the shared value to our community of cultural and recreational lands. Council supports

and encourages the development of this shared benefit by rating these properties at a lower level.

11 Legislative planning and accountability framework

111 Legislative Context

The Budget is a rolling four-year plan that outlines the financial and non-financial resources that Council
requires to achieve the strategic objectives described in the Council Plan. The diagram below depicts
the integrated planning and reporting framework that applies to local government in Victoria. At each
stage of the integrated planning and reporting framework there are opportunities for community and
stakeholder input. This is important to ensure transparency and accountability to both residents and

ratepayers.
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1.1.2  Key planning considerations

Although councils have a legal obligation to provide some services - such as animal management, local
roads, food safety and statutory planning - most council services are not legally mandated, including
some services closely associated with councils, such as libraries, building permits and sporting facilities.
Further, over time, the needs and expectations of communities can change. Therefore, councils need
to have robust processes for service planning and review to ensure all services continue to provide
value for money and are in line with community expectations. In doing so, councils should engage with
communities as part of determining how to prioritise resources and balance service provision, asset

maintenance responsibilities and capital works.

Community consultation needs to be in line with a Council's adopted Community Engagement Policy
and Public Transparency Policy.

Service Planning and Review

Service Planning includes considerations of budget, community needs and expectations, alignment
with Council Plan and Key Strategies, future needs assessment etc.

Each year Council's business units undertake service planning in relation to delivery of the Council Plan

(which includes community engagement input) and develop the Annual Action Plan across the Council.

A robust service development review program has been established to assess value, provision, and

sustainability. This provides strategic business planning in the forward provision of service delivery
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across Council areas.
Ongoing strengthening of service planning is being undertaken through:
e Articulation of objectives, scope, and standards across services, and alignment with the Council
Plan

¢ Planning processes, approaches, and support materials

* Development of longer-term strategic planning, operational provision, and asset management
for longer term financial planning outcomes, and seeking alignment with community needs in

these priorities and directions
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Council's integrated approach to planning, delivery and reporting supports and underpins the delivery

of the Banyule Community Vision 2041 and Council Plan.

The Council Plan

The Council Plan outlines Council's strategic priorities and directions in the broader context of the
Community Vision and adopted policies, strategies, and plans (including the Municipal Strategic
Statement and Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing Plan).

It works together with key plans such as the Financial Plan, Budget, Revenue and Rating Plan, Asset

Plan, and a range of other policies and plans.

The Council Plan outlines and integrates Banyule’s Health and Wellbeing Priorities for 2021-2025 and

Banyule's Climate Action Response.

The Council Plan is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that it continues to meet the needs of the
community. It is implemented through annual action plans, which reflect Council's decisions on the

initiatives and priority services to be funded through the Budget each year.

The Budget and Financial Plan are closely linked with and support the achievement of the Council Plan

and Community Vision.
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Source: Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions
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Islanders

6. Promote community awareness and support a diverse, connected, and inclusive community
that respects and celebrates different cultures, beliefs, abilities, bodies, ages, sexualities,
genders and identities

7. Provide a range of services and programs that support the development of children, young
people and families

8. Strengthen community preparedness and resilience for emergency events

9. Provide for and facilitate specific programs and respond to current and emerging preventable
disease, outbreaks and public health risks

10. Deliver a range of accessible services and programs for older people that support social
connections and independent living

11. Deliver a range of services and programs to become the leading Council in supporting and
empowering people with disabilities

12. Enable and empower philanthropic and business partners to support our community through
the establishment of the Banyule Community Fund.

To achieve this objective, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high quality, cost effective,
accessible and responsive services.
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Initiatives:

Initiatives listed in the Council Plan 2021-2025 - Draft Year 2 Annual Action Plan 2022/2023 for the
‘Our Inclusive and Connected Community’ objective (Community Priority Theme) include:

* Implement a range of initiatives and programs that support participation in sports, recreation
and leisure, and build and strengthen the capacity of sporting clubs.

¢ Implement the Neighbourhood Houses Strategic Partnership Framework.

e Transition the Social Support Programs to the Bellfield Community Hub, providing a
welcoming venue to support older people in the local area.

¢ Lead social research to inform and support actions on Banyule's health priorities in
partnership with the Inclusive Banyule Advisory Committee.

e Support the Banyule Child Youth and Family Committee to improve outcomes for children
and young people, as outlined in the Child and Youth Framework.

e Deliver a range of community festivals and events including Malahang Festival, Carols by
Candlelight, Twilight Sounds, Eco Festival, Chillin' in Banyule.

e Deliver a series of culturally appropriate activities, workshop and events as part of the Diverse
Communities Project, with the aim of uplifting and supporting our diverse community.

¢ Deliver quality improvement plans for all five Council early childhood services as per National
Quality Standards.

e Participate in the North West Metro (NWM) Regional Emergency Management Planning
Committee (REMPC) and the Municipal Emergency Management Planning Committee
(MEMPC) activities and subcommittees.

e« Complete the reviews of all emergency management plans and sub-plans.

For the complete list of Council Plan initiatives to be delivered for this objective please refer to the
Council Plan 2021-2025 - Draft Year 2 Annual Action Plan 2022/2023.

For further information on key capital works projects and initiatives associated with this objective
please refer to Section 5 of this Budget document.
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landfill by 2030

6. Engage and work with the community and partners to protect, enhance and experience the
environment

7. Protect, increase and maintain Banyule's urban forest population to provide a greener City for
enhanced liveability

8. Explore and support opportunities for urban farming and community gardens.

To achieve this objective, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high quality, cost effective,
accessible and responsive services.

The services and initiatives for the ‘Our Sustainable Environment’ objective are described below as
follows:

e Services - listing the primary business area and description of services provided.

* Initiatives - a selection of initiatives are listed to show some of the key activities, programs
and projects to be delivered in 2022/2023 to achieve strategies of the Council Plan (and
Banyule Community Vision 2041).
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Initiatives:

Initiatives listed in the Council Plan 2021-2025 - Draft Year 2 Annual Action Plan 2022/2023 for the
‘Our Sustainable Environment’ objective (Community Priority Theme) include:

e Finalise preparation of the Eltham Copper Butterfly masterplan for Banyule bush reserves,
including Mayona Road Reserve.

« Advocate for habitat retention within North East Link (NEL) and other major projects, retaining
offset plantings in Banyule and focusing on wildlife corridor connections.

e Operate, monitor and optimize capabilities of the existing stormwater harvesting sites and
Water Sensitive Urban Design (WSUD) assets.

o Deliver a series of capacity building workshops to support environmental volunteers to lead
and support positive climate action initiatives.

e Deliver environmental workshops to the community through Spring Outdoors Program.

¢ Roll outa FOGO (food organics and garden organics) kerbside collection system to residents.
» Commence a trial of environmentally friendly nappies at Morobe Street Children’s Centre.

e Provide environmental grants that support local environment initiatives.

e Support and implement annual nature play activities across selected bush reserves.

¢ Finalise and implement the Urban Forest Strategy.

e Develop an urban food strategy and framework.

For the complete list of Council Plan initiatives to be delivered for this objective please refer to the
Council Plan 2021-2025 - Draft Year 2 Annual Action Plan 2022/2023.

For further information on key capital works projects and initiatives associated with this objective
please refer to Section 5 of this Budget document.
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deliver urban centres that are resilient to the impacts of climate change
6. Preserve and enhance Banyule's valued heritage, local character, and its significant trees
7. Provide and maintain public parks and open spaces for a range of uses for all ages and
abilities

8. Lead on the use of sustainable modes of transport, and encourage walking, cycling and use of
public transport.

To achieve this objective, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high quality, cost effective,
accessible and responsive services.

The services and initiatives for the ‘Our Well-Built City’ objective are described below as follows:

s Services - listing the primary business area and description of services provided.

¢ Initiatives - a selection of initiatives are listed to show some of the key activities, programs
and projects to be delivered in 2022/2023 to achieve strategies of the Council Plan (and
Banyule Community Vision 2041).
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Initiatives:

Initiatives listed in the Council Plan 2021-2025 - Draft Year 2 Annual Action Plan 2022/2023 for the
‘Our Well-Built City' objective (Community Priority Theme) include:

* Continue to explore property projects that deliver strategic outcomes for Council ensuring
that assets are managed in the community’s diverse, long-term interests.

¢ Implement the final project stage (stage 4) of the Olympic Park Masterplan.
+ Continue to deliver the Watsonia Town Squire Project.
e Develop a Place-based Framework for Banyule.

« Continue to implement Sustainable Building Guidelines, embedding best practice
environmentally sustainable design specifications into capital works and maintenance
programs.

¢ Commence a place-based neighbourhood character review in conjunction with preparation of
the Banyule Housing Strategy.

* Continue to design and deliver the program of play space upgrades including the integration
of nature play and soft landscaping where possible.

¢ Undertake a comprehensive review of the Banyule Open Space Strategy (2016-2031) to
develop open space hierarchies and priorities.

e Prepare a masterplan for Rosanna Parklands to ensure the parklands are attractive,
environmentally sustainable and accessible for all users

e Review the Banyule Integrated Transport Plan 2015-2035 (BITP) and develop an updated
action plan.

¢ Implement Banyule Bicycle Strategy and Walking Strategy action plans.
» Complete Safe Access Audits for pedestrians, cyclists, and mobility scooters around schoaols.

e Deliver community behaviour change programs that support sustainable and safe transport
initiatives.

For the complete list of Council Plan initiatives to be delivered for this objective please refer to the
Council Plan 2021-2025 - Draft Year 2 Annual Action Plan 2022/2023.

For further information on key capital works projects and initiatives associated with this objective
please refer to Section 5 of this Budget document.
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6. Actively seek partnerships and collaborate with other organisations to build and utilise
community infrastructure.

To achieve this objective, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high quality, cost effective,
accessible and responsive services.

The services and initiatives for the ‘Our Valued Community Assets and Facilities’ objective are
described below as follows:

s Services - listing the primary business area and description of services provided.

¢ Initiatives - a selection of initiatives are listed to show some of the key activities, programs
and projects to be delivered in 2022/2023 to achieve strategies of the Council Plan (and
Banyule Community Vision 2041).
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Initiatives:

Initiatives listed in the Council Plan 2021-2025 - Draft Year 2 Annual Action Plan 2022/2023 for the
‘Our Valued Community Assets and Facilities’ objective (Community Priority Theme) include:
e Deliver sports field lighting improvements at nominated locations

« Develop a Sports Capital Works Policy that provides a consistent, equitable and transparent
approach to funding sports facilities and infrastructure.

« Complete the surface renovation of Beverley Road Oval, Heidelberg.

e Deliverimprovements to Council’s public toilet facilities at priority locations to improve
amenity and accessibility

e« Complete construction of the Macleod Park sporting pavilion.
¢ Continue roll-out of solar panel program on Council owned buildings.

e Install gross pollutant traps (GPT)/water sensitive urban design (WSUD) solution for Site 2
Gresswell Forest.

¢« Complete the construction of Montmorency Village precinct streetscape and lighting works.
e« Complete reconstruction of Redmond Court Wetland and creation of new parkland.

* (Continue to engage with the North East Link Project on land dealings to drive the best
outcome for Council and the community.

e Undertake expansion and improvement works at EastIlvanhoe Preschool.

e Support the ongoing partnership with Launch Housing during the development of the new
social housing build in Bellfield.

* Complete the construction of Old Eltham Road Stage 3 as per requirements of Roads to
Recovery funding.

* Install a new batting cage at the Greensborough Baseball Club facilities at Elder Street
Reserve, Watsonia

¢ Implement upgrades to tennis facilities at Chelsworth Park, including court resurfacing and
lighting.

e Prepare designs for Willinda Park to improve the athletic track and field facilities and
infrastructure.

* Redevelop the Montmorency Bowling Club facilities to improve access and amenity and
increase club house capacity and function.

For the complete list of Council Plan initiatives to be delivered for this objective please refer to the
Council Plan 2021-2025 - Draft Year 2 Annual Action Plan 2022/2023.

For further information on key capital works projects and initiatives associated with this objective
please refer to Section 5 of this Budget document.
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5. Partner with local employers, agencies and other organisations to create inclusive jobs
6. Provide and facilitate job readiness programs and pathways to employment

7. Encourage and support volunteerism within Banyule as an important contributor to the local
economy and involvement in community life

8. Create distinctive, appealing and thriving shopping centres and industrial precincts that have
a local identity and contribute to a strong sense of place

9. Create inclusive employment opportunities within Banyule Council workforce for people
facing barriers to employment

10. Lead as a social enterprise capital of Victoria by encouraging innovative social enterprises to
set-up their operations and offices within the City of Banyule.

To achieve this objective, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high quality, cost effective,
accessible and responsive services.

The services and initiatives for the ‘Our Thriving Local Economy’ objective are described below as
follows:

e Services - listing the primary business area and description of services provided.

o Initiatives - a selection of initiatives are listed to show some of the key activities, programs
and projects to be delivered in 2022/2023 to achieve strategies of the Council Plan (and
Banyule Community Vision 2041).
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Initiatives:

Initiatives listed in the Council Plan 2021-2025 - Draft Year 2 Annual Action Plan 2022/2023 for the
‘Our Thriving Local Economy’ objective (Community Priority Theme) include:
 Complete the Economic Development Strategy, inclusive of a Retail Review.

¢ Delivertraining and development that supports businesses with networking opportunities,
business development and one-on-one mentoring.

e Secure funding or strategic partnerships to expand start-up and development support for
social enterprises, microenterprise, disability enterprise, Aboriginal enterprise and creative
enterprise.

e Deliverthe Youth Marketspace and Creatives for Hire programs to provide entrepreneurial
opportunities for young people.

e Promote Banyule businesses by participating in a range of activities through North Link.

e Deliver Banyule's Inclusive Jobs Service program that supports employers to create inclusive
workplaces.

e Secure funding to expand Banyule's Inclusive Employment Program across Local
Governments in the Northern Region.

e Deliver a range of activities, programs or workshops that support young people’s skill
building, creative and employment pathways.

e Provide work experience and tertiary placements at Banyule Council.

e Continue to advocate to the State Government for the LaTrobe National Employment and
Innovation Cluster (NEIC) Plan to be finalised and implemented.

e Support a community-led Banyule Social Enterprise Network.

For the complete list of Council Plan initiatives to be delivered for this objective please refer to the
Council Plan 2021-2025 - Draft Year 2 Annual Action Plan 2022/2023.

For further information on key capital works projects and initiatives associated with this objective
please refer to Section 5 of this Budget document.
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6. Proactively manage Council's risks and provide a safe workplace

7. Investin new technology and innovative digital solutions to deliver seamless and responsive
services

8. Engage meaningfully with our diverse community, encourage participation, and be proactive
and responsive to current and emerging needs

9. Improve the reach, transparency, impact and responsiveness of our communications

10. Advocate for community priorities and aspirations to improve service, infrastructure, land
use, environmental and social outcomes

11. Continually improve, innovate and review our services to ensure they are effective, efficient
and represent value for money

12. Provide responsible management of procurement activity in a way that enhances social,
economic and environmental outcomes

To achieve this objective, we will continue to plan, deliver and improve high quality, cost effective,
accessible and responsive services.

The services and initiatives for the ‘Our Trusted and Responsive Leadership’ objective are described
below as follows:

s Services - listing the primary business area and description of services provided.

s Initiatives - a selection of initiatives are listed to show some of the key activities, programs
and projects to be delivered in 2022/2023 to achieve strategies of the Council Plan (and
Banyule Community Vision 2041).
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Mermuoersnip soiwdre 1or siali.

»  Work with Advisory Committees to support and collaborate on key social justice advocacy
matters.

* Increase customer satisfaction and number of visits to Council’s corporate website.

¢ Implement Council's Advocacy Framework and Action Plan, and report on progress to the
community.

For the complete list of Council Plan initiatives to be delivered for this objective please refer to the
Council Plan 2021-2025 - Draft Year 2 Annual Action Plan 2022/2023.

For further information on key capital works projects and initiatives associated with this objective
please refer to Section 5 of this Budget document.

2.1 Performance Statement

The LGPRF service performance outcome indicators detailed at section 2.8 will be reported on within
the Performance Statement which is prepared at the end of the year as required by section 98 of the
Local Government Act 2020 and included in the Annual Report. The Performance Statement will also
include reporting on prescribed indicators of financial performance (outlined in section 6) and
sustainable capacity.

The full set of prescribed performance indicators contained in the Performance Statement is audited
each year by the Victorian Auditor General who issues an audit opinion on the Performance Statement.
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3. Financial Statements

This section presents information in regard to the Financial Statements and Statement of Human
Resources. The budget information for the year 2022/2023 has been supplemented with projections
to 2024/2025.

This section includes the following financial statements prepared in accordance with the Local
Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

+  Comprehensive Income Statement

+ Balance Sheet

+  Statement of Changes in Equity

+  Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Capital Works

Statement of Human Resources

Proposed Budget | 2022 - 2026 Page | 53

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 315



Item: 8.6 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Proposed Budget 2022-2026

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 316



Item: 8.6 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Proposed Budget 2022-2026

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 317



Item: 8.6 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Proposed Budget 2022-2026

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 318



Item: 8.6 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Proposed Budget 2022-2026

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 319



Item: 8.6 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Proposed Budget 2022-2026

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 320



Item: 8.6 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Proposed Budget 2022-2026

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 321



Item: 8.6 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Proposed Budget 2022-2026

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 322



Item: 8.6 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Proposed Budget 2022-2026

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 323



Item: 8.6 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Proposed Budget 2022-2026

4. Notes to the Financial Statements Comparison

This section presents detailed information on material components of the financial statements. Council
needs to assess which components are material, considering the dollar amounts and nature of these
components.

4.1 Comprehensive Income Statement Comparison
4.1.1 Rates and charges

Rates and charges are required by the Local Government Act 1989 and the Regulations to be disclosed
in Council's annual budget.

In developing the Revenue and Rating Plan, rates and charges were identified as an important source
of revenue. Planning for future rate increases has therefore been an important component of the
Strategic Resource Planning process. The Fair Go Rates System (FGRS) sets out the maximum amount
councils may increase rates in a year.

For 2022/2023 the FGRS cap has been set at 1.75%. The cap applies to both general rates and municipal
charges and is calculated on the basis of council's average rates and charges.

The level of required rates and charges has been considered in this context, with reference to Council's
other sources of income and the planned expenditure on services and works to be undertaken for the
community.

To achieve these objectives while maintaining service levels and a strong capital expenditure program,
the average general rate will increase by 1.75% in line with the rate cap. This will raise general rates for
the proposed Budget 2022/2023 to $110.12 million (prior to the separation of the two new waste rates
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Residential/Commercial/Industrial Vacant Land

e Objective:
To encourage the development of land and to ensure that such rateable land makes an equitable
financial contribution to the cost of carrying out the functions of Council, including the:

1) Implementation of good governance and sound financial stewardship; and

2) Construction, renewal, upgrade, expansion and maintenance of infrastructure assets;
and

3) Development and provision of health, environmental, conservation, leisure, recreation,
youth and family community services; and

4) Provision of strategic and economic management, town planning and general support
services; and

5) Promotion of cultural, heritage and tourism aspects of Council's municipal district
. Types and Classes
Any rateable land on which no dwelling is erected.
. Use and Level of Differential Rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure and Capital Works
described in the Budget adopted by Council.

The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary to achieve the
objectives specified above.

. Geographic Location:
Wherever located within the municipal district.
. Use of Land:
Any use permitted under the Banyule Planning Scheme.
e Planning Scheme Zoning:
The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the relevant Banyule Planning Scheme.

Commercial/Industrial Improved Land

. Objective:
To ensure that such rateable land makes an equitable financial contribution to the cost of carrying out

the functions of Council having regard to the capacity of such land to be used to yield income and the
demands such land makes on Council's infrastructure.

Those functions include the:

1) Implementation of good governance and sound financial stewardship; and

2) Construction, renewal, upgrade, expansion and maintenance of infrastructure assets;
and

3) Development and provision of health, environmental, conservation, leisure, recreation,
youth and family community services; and

4) Provision of strategic and economic management, town planning and general support
services; and
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5) Promotion of cultural, heritage and tourism aspects of Council's municipal district
. Types and Classes:

Any rateable land which is used, or designed or adapted to be used, primarily for commercial or
industrial purposes.

. Use and Level of Differential Rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure and Capital Works
described in the Budget adopted by Council.

The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary to achieve the
objectives specified above.

. Geographic Location:

Wherever located within the municipal district.

. Use of Land:

Any use permitted under the Banyule Planning Scheme.
. Planning Scheme Zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the Banyule Planning Scheme.
. Types of Buildings:

The types of buildings on the land within a differential rate are all buildings that are now constructed
on the land.

Residential Improved Land

. Objective:

To ensure that such rateable land makes an equitable financial contribution to the cost of carrying out
the functions of Council, having regard to the relative benefits derived from the carrying out of such
functions.

Those functions include the:

1) Implementation of good governance and sound financial stewardship; and

2) Construction, renewal, upgrade, expansion and maintenance of infrastructure assets;
and

3) Development and provision of health, environmental, conservation, leisure, recreation,
youth and family community services; and

4) Provision of strategic and economic management, town planning and general support
services; and

5) Promotion of cultural, heritage and tourism aspects of Council's municipal district
. Types and Classes:

Any rateable land which is not Vacant Land, Commercial / Industrial Vacant Land or Commercial /
Industrial Improved Land.

. Use and Level of Differential Rate:

The differential rate will be used to fund some of those items of expenditure and Capital Works
described in the Budget adopted by Council.
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The level of the differential rate is the level which Council considers is necessary to achieve the
objectives specified above.

. Geographic Location:

Wherever located within the municipal district.

. Use of Land:

Any use permitted under the Banyule Planning Scheme.
. Planning Scheme Zoning:

The zoning applicable to each rateable land within this category, as determined by consulting maps
referred to in the Banyule Planning Scheme.

. Types of Buildings:
The types of buildings on the land within a differential rate are all buildings that are now constructed
on the land.

Cultural and Recreational Lands

. Objective:

To ensure that the promotion of cultural, heritage and recreational activity occurs within Council's
municipal district and that this is supported in a way that encourages appropriate activity and
development.

Council has considered the service utilised by the lands and the benefit these lands provide to the
community by consideration of their cultural or recreational land use, as required under The Act.
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Banyule levies the Kerbside Waste Rate on properties that are used wholly or partly for residential
purposes that are able to receive a standard kerbside waste collection

The Kerbside Waste Rate is not levied on properties that do not receive a kerbside waste service due
to conditions imposed under the Planning and Environment Act 1987, through locational constraints or
other factors that make kerbside waste collection impractical.

The Kerbside Waste Rate is levied each year and is subject to addition or removal via a supplementary
adjustment process on a monthly basis from July through to May the following year. Adjustments are
not performed in June as these impact Council’s ability to transparently budget for waste-related

income and expenses.

41.1(p) Current use of Service Charges

A service charge for non-standard refuse collection (e.g. larger bins) from rateable properties is charged
in addition to the Kerbside Waste Rate. These charges are declared in Council's Schedule of Fees and
Charges each year and are designed to recoup the additional costs of disposing of additional waste and
providing a non-standard waste service. These Service Charges are only levied on ratepayers who have
elected to have a non-standard waste service.

A kerbside waste service charge is also levied on properties deemed non-rateable under section 154 of
the Local Government Act 1989 where a kerbside waste service is provided. An additional service charge
for non-standard refuse collection (e.g. larger bins) is charged in addition to the Kerbside Waste Rate
where ratepayers have elected to have a non-standard waste service.
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Capital grants are projected to increase by $3.33 million or 26.35% from forecast 2021/2022 to
proposed budget 2022/2023. Capital Grants are often ad-hoc in nature and fluctuate from year to year
depending on the nature of capital projects being undertaken and the funding made available by the
State and Federal Governments. Some of the significant movements are:

* Roads to Recovery Grant funding will increase by $0.47 million in 2022/2023 from the carry
forward due to delays of the Old Eltham Road and Rangeview Road projects.

e \Victoria Grants Commission -local roads grants will decrease by $0.13 million, which is partially
offset the increase in General Purpose grants.

e State government grants for buildings will decrease by $0.59 million, Bellfield Community
Centre Development, Greensborough Preschool Expansion and Olympic Park Masterplan
received funding in 2021/2021, whereas 2021/2022 sees East lvanhoe Preschool upgrade and
the continuation of the Olympic Park Masterplan.

* Council will receive a $5.00 million grant for Watsonia Town Square Construction as part of
North-East link project (NELP).

e The Local Roads and Community Infrastructure Program has a reduction of $1.36 million in
2022/2023, the program in 2022/2023 will partially fund the footpath replacement program.
This is the 3rd year of program to supports local councils to deliver priority local road and
community infrastructure projects with the goal of supporting jobs and the resilience of local
economies to help communities bounce back from the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Total materials and services are expected to increase by $0.78 million (1.56%), key movements within
materials and services are:

* Agency staffing is budgeted to decrease by $2.15 million from forecast, agency staff are
engaged to assist with staff vacancies as they present over the year and any additional forecast
will offset employee benefits. Budget for agency represents the essential service areas that
must be backfilled, e.g. waste collection and childcare.

e Cleaning services will increase in 2022/2023 as all Council facilities are expected to return to
pre-pandemic levels. Many services and facilities were closed during 2021/2022 resulting in
decreased expenses incurred.

e Initiatives are expected to increase in 2022/2023 with the continued roll out of Council’s
prioritisation in Digital Transformation and improvements to Information Technology systems
to better support out services and customers. We expect to spend $4.80 million on digital
transformation in 2022/2023. (Refer to Section 5 for the Initiative Program).

e Parking and traffic enforcement services are an outsourced function, the contractor costs are
relative to the parking fine income generated and were reduced in 2021/2022 in proportion
with Statutory Fee income due to COVID.

e Coundil Insurances are expected to increase by 13.12% as a result of increased premiums
related to building and public liability being seen in the market.

e Waste disposal costs are expected to decrease overall by 10.84%. This is due to the introduction
of Food Organic Green Organic (FOGO) service in July 2022 diverting waste from landfill, this
will assist in offsetting the Environment Protection Authority (EPA) Landfill Levy increasing from

AAAF AA L #AAF AR o i - .- A L. AAAA

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 340



Item: 8.6 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Proposed Budget 2022-2026

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 341



Item: 8.6 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Proposed Budget 2022-2026

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 342



Item: 8.6 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Proposed Budget 2022-2026

Proposed Budget | 2022 - 2026 Page | 81

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 343



Item: 8.6 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Proposed Budget 2022-2026

Ordinary Meeting of Council - 27 June 2022 Page 344



Item: 8.6 Attachment 1: Banyule City Council Proposed Budget 2022-2026

4.2.1 Total current assets

Current assets include all assets that can reasonably expect to be converted into cash within one year,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments, and other assets. Total cash and
other financial assets (investment longer than three months) is forecast to increase $4.30 million to
$75.96 million as a result of the following movements: a budgeted cash from operating activities of
$37.50 million and financial activities of $2.82 million, plus the proceeds from sale of Property, plant
and equipment of $25.53 million. These are offset the investment of $61.55 million in capital works
projects. The significant projects being funded from cash reserves are the major facility development
of East Ivanhoe Village precinct streetscape, Local Roads Resurfacing and Footpath Replacement. In
addition, a property classified as current assets is anticipated to be sold inthe 2022/2023 financial year.

4.2.2 Total non-current assets

Non-current assets include trade and other receivables, investment in associates and joint ventures,
property, infrastructure, plant and equipment, and intangible assets. The $15.94 million increase in this
balance is mainly attributable to the net result of the capital works programs ($61.55 million of total capital
works less the depreciation and amortisation of assets $24.66 million, as well as a $21.87 million written
down value of motor vehicles and properties sold, including $8.12 million of properties held as a non-
current asset.

4.2.3 Total current liabilities

Trade and other payables include Salaries & Wages accrual's increase of $1.48 million based on pay periods
before the end of the financial year and increase on Salaries and Wages expenditure.

Provisions include accrued long service leave, annual leave and annual leave loading owed to employees.
These employee entitlements are expected to increase by $0.52 million due to a combination of increased
pay rates and an expected increase in leave entitlements.

Unearned Income is forecasted to decreased by $3.45 million based on the progression of Capital Works
programs.

4.2.4 Total non-current liabilities

Non-current provisions and trust funds and deposits are not expected to vary during the year. Lease
Liabilities relate to the lease of infrastructure property, plant and equipment. The reduction of non-current
liabilities represents the repayment of leases for the year in according to lease agreements and adjusted
by the new liabilities generated from renewing leases.

The Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are forecasted to increase by $5.02 million mainly due to one
new loan expected to be taken out in 2022/23 as part of the Treasury Corporation of Victoria's Local
Government Loan Scheme to help fund the Rosanna Library Project.
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4.3 Statement of changes in Equity
4.3.1 Reserves

Council maintains reserves of separately identified funds to meet specific purposes in the future and for
which there is no existing liability. These amounts are transferred to and from the accumulated surplus.
Two of these reserves are statutory reserves, meaning that the funds must remain available for a specific
purpose (public open space and Off-Street car parking). The remaining reserves are discretionary and while
not restricted, Council has made decisions regarding the future use of these funds and unless there is a
Council resolution, these funds should be used for those earmarked purposes

During 2022/2023 $59.01 million is budgeted to be transferred to reserve for future purposes including
expenditure on plant and equipment, public open space and asset renewal reserves.

Itis also anticipated to transfer $31.66 million from the reserves to fund parts of the capital works program
and financing activities.

4.3.2 Equity
Total equity always equals net assets and is made up of the following components:

e Accumulated surplus which is the value of all net assets less reserves that have accumulated over time.

e Asset revaluation reserves which represents the difference between the previously recorded value of
the assets and their current valuations.

e Otherreserves are funds that Council wishes to separately identify as being set aside to meet a specific
purpose in the future. These reserves are transferred to and from the accumulated surplus.

Total equity is projected to increase by $15.11 million as a result of Council's total comprehensive result.
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4. Notes to the financial statements
4.4.1 Net cash flows provided by operating activities

The net cash flow provided by operating activities has increased by $8.17 million when compared to
2021/2022 forecast. This variation is mainly explained by Council User and Statutory fees and charges
have been significantly impacted in 2021/2022 due to COVID and the revenue is expected to rebound
since the 2022/2023 financial year. In 2022/2023, the additional rate revenue income and cost
reduction on COVID-19 Recovery Support Package ending 2021/2022 is offset by the increased
employee cost.

4.4.2 Net cash flows used in investing activities

The net cash flow used in investing activities is representative of the net funding requirement from
Council to support the long-term investment in property, infrastructure, plant and equipment. In
2021/2022 Council relied on its existing cash reserves to help fund operations (incl. the Recovery
Support Package) and the capital works program. This necessitated the redemption of a portion of
Council's financial assets (term deposits). In 2022/2023, Council's capital works program is going to be
supported by a number of strategic property sales planned to occur during the year, including
subsequent staged settlements related to the sale of the Banksia College site.

4.4.3 Net cash flows used in financing activities

In accordance with Council’s debt management plan, Council continue to review opportunities for debt
redemption whilst ensuring appropriate levels of liquidity. For 2021/2022, loan principal repayments
total $10.26 million which includes a lump sum payment of $9.09 million in settlement of one of
Council's existing loans. In addition, there is one new loan expected to be taken outin 2022/23 as part
of the Treasury Corporation of Victoria's Local Government Loan Scheme to help fund the Rosanna
Library Project. This Loan scheme provides local governments access to very low interest, subsidised
loans to help fund infrastructure projects.
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Infrastructure includes road, bridges, footpaths, kerb and channel, drainage, parks and gardens, open
space and streetscapes, off street car parks and other structures. Council will manage $28.27 million
to renew and upgrade the infrastructure assets across the City, and $1.18 million on new infrastructure
projects.

For the 2022/2023 year, $16.20 million will be expended on road projects, the more significant projects
include:

¢ $5.23 million Watsonia Town Square development and construction

s  $3.00 million Footpath replacement program

¢ $2.67 million Streetscape renewal projects including $1.59 million for East Ivanhoe Village
Precinct streetscape and $0.98 million in Montmorency

* $1.95 million roads rehabilitation works

¢ $1.07 million Roads to Recovery

Drainage projects will have $1.55 million expended.
Parks and gardens will see $11.70 million spent over many projects, including:

¢ $1.72 million for the Redmond Court Wetland upgrade, boardwalk and parkland stage 2
e $1.72 million on the Waterdale Road Pocket Park
* $1.10 million to renew and upgrade Pecks Dam Construction
*  $1.44 million completing Stage 3 of the Olympic Park Masterplan
¢ $1.33 Beverley Road Oval Surface Renovation
¢ $0.86 million on reserve improvements at Petrie Park and EJ Andrews reserves
* $0.68 million is invested on the renewal of seven playgrounds.
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Property ($27.97 million)

The property class comprises land, buildings and building improvements including community
facilities, municipal offices, sports facilities and pavilions. In the 2022/2023 year, Council will invest
$24.22 million to renew and upgrade properties across the City, and $3.59 million on new and

expansion property projects.

The most significant projects include:

$6.30 million Rosanna Library and Precinct upgrade

$5.30 million for Olympic Park Masterplan project Stage 4

$2.63 million on Climate Action Programs (includes $1.88 million on Street Lighting Program -
Upgrade to LED)

$2.50 million East lvanhoe Pre-school upgrade

$1.77 million on Macleod Park Change Rooms

$1.00 million on Montmorency Bowling Club improvements

$0.85 refurbishing Public Toilets in accordance with the Public Toilet Strategy

$0.62 million on Aquatic and Leisure Centres (WaterMarc and Ivanhoe Aquatic)

Plant and equipment ($2.78 million)

Plant and equipment include plant, machinery and equipment, motor vehicles, computers and
telecommunications. The $1.14 million funding is allocated to purchasing motor vehicles and heavy

plant to reflect the ongoing cyclical replacement of light and heavy vehicle fleet. The renewal and
upgrade of Council's plant & equipment and furniture & fitting are $1.40 million and $0.24 million
respectively.
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renewal.
Council cash ($29.83 million)

Council cash includes the funds generated from its operating activities (revenue), proceeds from sale of assets, and cash reserves, which is used as

the major funding source for the capital works program ($29.83 million in 2022/2023 including $7.32 million carried forward from 2021/2022). The
significant projects funded by Council cash include:

e Various Roads, Street and Bridges $8.34 million (includes East lvanhoe Village Improvement Program $1.29 million, footpaths $1.89 million,
rehabilitation works $1.95 million, Montmorency Streetscape $0.98 million and car parks $0.68 million)

e Olympic Park Masterplan works - stages 3 & 4 $2.74 million

e Climate Action Program $2.63 million (include Street Lighting Program - Upgrade to LED $1.88 million)

e Macleod Park Change Rooms $1.55 million

e Redmond Court Wetland upgrade of $1.22 million

e Fleet replacement program $1.14 million
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Government Grants - Capital ($15.08 million)

Capital grants include all monies received from State and Commonwealth sources for the purposes of funding the capital works program. Grant
funds will be received and recognised in accordance with funding agreements, $2.08 million of the government grants are related to carry forward

projects

. Significant grants and contributions are:

Watsonia Town Square development and construction $5.23 million

Various Fit Out and Refurbishments $3.03 million (includes $2.50 million for East lvanhoe Pre-school upgrade)

Olympic Park Masterplan Stage 4 ($2.00 million)

Footpath Replacement program, funded through the Local Roads and Community Infrastructure program ($1.24 million)
Roads to Recovery ($1.07 million)

Waterdale Road Pocket Park & Shared zone ($1.01 million)

Petrie Park & EJ Andrews reserve improvements $0.75 million

Contribution ($10.34 million)

The contributions from community is expected to be $9.21 million in the 2022/2023 financial year, including $1.21 million for carry forward projects.
Council has cash set aside from prior years’ capital contributions for the purpose of improving public open space.

In 2022/2023, the contributions will primarily be invested in will be invested in Council's parks and gardens and playgrounds ($7.47 million) and
building projects ($2.85 million). The significant projects are:

Olympic Park Masterplan works - Stage 4 $2.00 million

Beverley Road Oval Surface Full Renovation ($1.08 million)

$1.1 million Pecks Dam Redesign and Construction.

$0.85 million to refurbish Public Toilets in accordance with the Public Toilet Strategy
Waterdale Road Pocket Park & Shared zone ($0.70 million)

Borrowings ($6.30 million)

Borrowings of $6.30 million are expected to be undertaken to fund the Rosanna Library and Precinct upgrade.
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